
 

 
 

 

 

   

AGENDA 
Town of Nags Head Planning Board 

Nags Head Municipal Complex Board Room 
Tuesday, April 19th, 2016; 2:30 pm 

 
A.  Call To Order 
 
B.  Approval of Agenda 
 
C.  Public Comment/Audience Response 
 
D. Approval of Minutes  –  March 16,  2016 
 
E.  Action Items   

 
1. Consideration of amendments to the Town’s Sign ordinance to ensure content neutral language 

and regulations pertaining to residential freestanding signage. 
 

2. Consideration of a Conditional Use/Vested Right request submitted by VHB Engineering on behalf 
of Dare County Tourism Board for modifications to the previously approved site plan and 
conditional use permit for the Outer Banks Event Site, located at 6900 S. Croatan Highway.   

 
F.  Report on Board of Commissioners Actions 
 

1. The Public Hearing for the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment to list “municipally-owned 
recreation facilities” as a permitted use within the C-2, General Commercial Zoning District, was 
scheduled for the May 4th, 2016. 

 
G.  Town Updates – as requested 
 

1. Update on Focus Nags Head 
 

2. Update on Dowdy Park 
 
H.  Discussion Items 
 

1. Discussion of Cottage Courts as permissible uses within the Town. 
 
I.  Planning Board Members’ Agenda 
 
J.  Planning Board Chairman’s Agenda 
 
K.  Adjournment 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     March 2016  

1 

Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board 
March 16, 2016 

-DRAFT - 
 

 
The Planning Board of the Town of Nags Head met in regular session on Wednesday, March 16, 2016 
in the Board Room at the Nags Head Municipal Complex.   
 
Chairman Mark Cornwell called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. as a quorum was present. 
 
Members Present 
 
Mark Cornwell, Clyde Futrell, Mike Siers, Jim Troutman, Pogie Worsley  
 
Members Absent 
 
Ben Reilly, Kate Murray 
 
Others Present 
 
Andy Garman, Kelly Wyatt, Lily Nieberding 
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
There being no changes to the agenda, Jim Troutman moved that it be approved as submitted. Pogie 
Worsley seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 
 
Public Comment/Audience Response 
 
None 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
There being no changes, Jim Troutman moved that the minutes be approved as presented. Pogie 
Worsley seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 
 
Action Items 
 
Initiation and Consideration of a zoning ordinance text amendment to Town Code Section 48-407(b) 
to list “Municipally-owned recreation facilities” as a permitted use within the C-2, General Commercial 
District.    
 
Deputy Planning Director Kelly Wyatt explained that as the Town begins to solidify the development 
plan for Dowdy Park it is important to begin the process to extend the municipally-owned recreational 
facility use category to the C-2, General Commercial District.   
 
Currently, recreational facilities in the SED-80 District, such as the Town Park on Barnes Street, are 
allowed by Conditional Use due to the proximity to residential development, residential zoning 
districts and the sensitive nature of the environmental district (ie: topography, tree preservation & 
tree removal).  Recreational facilities in the R-2 District, such as the Dare County Soccer Complex on 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     March 2016  

2 

Satterfield Landing, are allowed by Conditional Use due to the increased intensity of programmed 
fields, noise and lighting.   

   
Staff is proposing that in the C-2, this use category be listed as a permitted use since parks and 
recreation facilities are less likely to pose land use compatibility issues in a commercial zoning district 
as they would in residential or special environmental districts. In addition, Dowdy Park, one of only 
two municipally-owned recreational facilities in the C-2 District, will consist of low-level security 
lighting only and un-programmed passive recreation fields.  Noise and lighting is not anticipated to be 
problematic in any way to the adjoining properties so Staff does not feel that it needs to be buffered 
or regulated beyond the current requirements of the C-2 District. 
 
Ms. Wyatt confirmed for Chairman Cornwell that a Site Plan has not been presented to the Planning 
Board for review as of yet. This proposed change needs to be approved prior to site plan review 
which Staff is hoping to have to the Planning Board in May. 
 
Ms. Wyatt also confirmed that Staff is requesting that the Planning Board both initiate and 
recommend approval of the proposed text amendment. 
 
Ms. Wyatt confirmed for Mr. Troutman that if the intensity of the park were to increase in the future, 
the Planning Board would have the opportunity to discuss, review and recommend approval/denial of 
any changes.   
 
Clyde Futrell moved to initiate and recommend approval or the text amendment as presented. Pogie 
Worsley seconded and the motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
Town Updates 
 
None 
 
Discussion Items 
 
None 
 
Planning Board Members’ Agenda 
 
None 
 
Planning Board Chairman’s Agenda 
 
None 
 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:10 PM.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lily Campos Nieberding 



1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Planning Board 

FROM: Andy Garman, Deputy Town Manager 
 Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director and Zoning Administrator 

DATE: April 15, 2016 

SUBJECT: Consideration of amendments to the Town’s Sign ordinance to ensure content 
neutral language and regulations pertaining to residential freestanding signage. 

 
Last month, the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners met in a joint workshop with local 
realtors to discuss the issue of freestanding residential signage. This issue was originally 
referred to the Planning Board in April of 2015 due to concerns over the proliferation of 
permanent real estate signs along the beach road and associated impacts on community 
appearance. As a result of the joint workshop, the Board of Commissioners appointed a 
subcommittee of two Planning Board members, a member of the Board of Commissioners, and 
three representatives from the real estate industry to reach consensus on how these signs 
should be regulated. The committee has since met and agreed to forward the following 
recommended ordinance modification to the Planning Board. The following is a summary of the 
subcommittee’s recommended changes. 
 
The subcommittee reviewed requirements for residential signage based on criteria for height, 
size, location and number of signs. It was agreed that the freestanding residential signage size 
limit should be reduced from six square feet to three square feet. The size limit will not include 
a frame constructed of 2’x4’ or 4’x4’ framing materials. Additionally, the height will be limited to 
36 inches above grade measured to the top of the sign. The signs should be located in a 
manner which does not obstruct visibility from vehicles entering and exiting driveways. No 
specific setback requirement was established for these signs. For existing signs not meeting the 
aforementioned criteria, there will be an amortization date of January 1, 2019. Additionally, all 
new signs erected after the adopted date of the ordinance shall comply with these standards. It 
was reiterated that this signage allowance is only for properties where principal structures are 
located more than 100 feet from the front property line. In addition to the freestanding 
residential signage allowance, properties in single-family use may also have a sign attached to 
the dwelling up to six square feet in area. It was noted that once the amortization takes effect, 
six square foot freestanding signs may be relocated to the wall of the building. 
 
The subcommittee also discussed non-commercial identification signs erected by property 
owners. It was agreed that new ordinance should allow property owners to have up to one 
freestanding sign in this category not to exceed three square feet in area. Property owners may 
also have one wall mounted non-commercial identification sign not to exceed six square feet in 
area. Currently, the ordinance allows one non-commercial identification sign not to exceed two 
square feet in area and does not specify where it can be placed. 
 
Finally, the subcommittee agreed that the height limit for freestanding residential signs, 
including temporary signs, should not exceed 36 inches above grade measured to the top of the 
sign. This would include signs placed on properties actively listed for sale or under construction.  



2 

The attached ordinance has been modified in various locations to reflect the aforementioned 
recommendations. The ordinance has also been modified to include content neutral regulations 
which are designed to be consistent with the 2015 US Supreme Court ruling in Reed v. Town of 
Gilbert. This language was previously presented to the Planning Board in December of 2015. 
Staff has now received input from the Town Attorney on the draft ordinance and changes have 
been incorporated throughout the ordinance to reflect his suggested revisions. 
 
As the Planning Board is aware, the Local Business Committee reviewed a number of changes 
to the town’s sign ordinance last year with the goal of improving the business climate and 
appearance of the town. An additional recommendation to rooftop signage regulations has been 
incorporated into the attached ordinance based on input from this committee. The changes are 
summarized as follows: 
 

 Require that roof signs be proportional to the roof area or roof plane on which they 

are attached. This is an aesthetic issue to ensure that signs don’t dominate other 

building architectural features. In this case, the ordinance would state that a roof 

sign must not exceed 25% percent of the roof plane surface area. 

 Ensure that roof signs do not block windows, openings or other architectural 

features such as dormers. This is another architectural/aesthetic issue. 

 To prevent roof signs from being too tall, require that they not extend more than 10 

feet from the lowest point of attachment to the roof.  

 The roof signage allowance has been lowered from a total of 300 square feet to 60 

square feet per sign with a maximum of two signs per building.   

 To preserve the night sky, require roof signs to be illuminated with shielded downlit 

fixtures only. 

 
Attachments: 
 

 Draft sign ordinance revisions 

 Minutes 5/4/15 Local Business Committee 

 Minutes 1/28/16 Local Business Committee 

 Minutes and Staff Report 3/16/2016 Joint Board of Commissioners Workshop 

 Email summarizing 3/31/16 sign ordinance subcommittee discussion/recommendation 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 1 

Sec. 48-7. - Definitions of specific words and terms.  

Sign. Any surface, fabric or device bearing lettered, pictorial or sculptured matter designed 
to convey information visually and exposed to public view, or any structures, including billboard 
or poster panel, designed to carry visual information.  

(1) Bulletin board. A sign used to announce meetings or programs to be held on the 
premises of a church, school, auditorium, library, museum, community recreation 
center or similar noncommercial places of public assembly.  

(2) Commercial Business sign. A sign which directs attention to a business, profession or 
industry located upon the premises where the sign is displayed, to type of products 
sold, manufactured or assembled, and/or to service or entertainment offered on said 
premises; but not a sign pertaining to the preceding if such activity is only minor and 
incidental to the principal use of the premises. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of 
completion a commercial business sign may be erected on a premises provided a site 
plan has been approved by the town and the required building permit(s) has been 
issued.  

(3) Construction sign. A sign used to advertise the general contractor, contractor, 
subcontractor, architect, landscape architect, or other such professional persons or 
organizations engaged in or associated with the lawful construction, alteration, 
remodeling or demolition of any building or use. The name, logo, symbol, or other 
printed expression of a business under construction may be included on the sign 
provided the expression is printed in accordance with subsection 48-283(3).  

(4) Directional sign. A sign which contains only the name of the establishment to which 
direction is given and directional information.  

(5) Identification sign. A sign used to identify only: the name of the individual, family, 
organization or enterprise occupying the premises; the profession of the occupant; the 
name of the building on which the sign is displayed.  

(6)(4) Noncommercial sign. A sign structure designed and intended to promote, 
support, call attention to or give notice to a cause, nonprofit and noncommercial 
service, or political message of an individual, charitable organization, political group or 
other entity. A sign that contains no commercial advertising or statements, logos, 
designs or trademarks designed or intended to promote or produce financial gain 
other than donations for charitable organizations such as groups which are tax exempt 
pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code. 

(7) Outdoor advertising sign and structure. A sign and structure which directs attention to 
a business, commodity, service or entertainment conducted, sold or offered:  

a. Only elsewhere than upon the premises where the sign is displayed; or 

b. As a minor or incidental activity upon the premises where the sign is displayed 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 2 

(8)(5) Flag (non-advertising, non-informational). A piece of fabric or other flexible 
material attached to a freestanding flag pole or other permanent pole structure solely 
containing distinctive colors, patterns, standards, words, or emblems used as either a 
symbol of an organization or entity or as an ornamental feature, including but not 
limited to flags of the United States, North Carolina, county or municipal jurisdictions, 
foreign nations having diplomatic relations with the United States; flags of any 
religious, civic or fraternal organization, or any educational or cultural facility; and/or 
any other flags adopted or sanctioned by the board of commissioners. Flags shall be 
permitted in all districts on developed lots, provided that the following conditions are 
met:  

a. Such flags are displayed on permanent pole structures or other mounting 
surfaces. 

b. Flag poles shall not exceed 35 feet in height above the road grade, except in 
accordance with section 48-81 exclusion from height limitations.  

c. The size of the flag shall be no greater than six feet by ten feet however, this size 
restriction shall not apply to the flag of the United States of America.  

d. The number of flags shall be limited to one flag for every 20 linear feet of street 
frontage.  

(9)(6) Commercial Flag sign. A sign made of fabric, plastic, or similar material or other 
flexible material and displayed as a flag on a flag pole having a commercial message. 
Flag signs shall not exceed 24 square feet in area and 35 14 feet in height above the 
road grade, and shall be allowed only on freestanding flag poles.  

(7) Permanent Sign: A sign attached or affixed to a building, window, or structure, or to 
the ground in a manner that enables the sign to resist environmental loads, such as 
wind, and that precludes ready removal or movement of the sign and whose intended 
use appears to be indefinite.  

(8) Temporary Sign: A type of non-permanent, sign located on private property that is 
generally displayed for a limited period of time in conjunction with a specific activity or 
event occurring at the property.  

(10) Time and temperature display. An LED portion of a freestanding sign that is dedicated 
to displaying time and temperature only, without electronic advertising matter, and 
meets the following criteria:  

a. The display area does not exceed 15 percent of the total sign area. 

b. The display consists of numbers comprised from amber LEDs on a black 
background. 

c. The display shall incorporate dimming technology based on ambient light levels. 

d. Number height shall not exceed 14 inches in height. 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 3 

e. Time and temperature information shall not change or alternate less than every 
three seconds.  

Sign area means the area of signs composed, in whole or in part, of freestanding letters, 
devices or sculptured matter not mounted on a measurable surface shall be construed to be 
the area of the least square, rectangle or circle that will enclose the letters, devices and/or 
sculptured matter. The area of a double-faced sign shall be the area of one face of the sign, 
provided that the two faces are of the same size and are parallel to one another with no more 
than 24 inches between each sign face.  

ARTICLE VIII. - SIGNS AND OUTDOOR ADVERTISING STRUCTURES  

Sec. 48-281. - Intent of article.  

It is the intent of this article to protect the visual attractiveness and community character of 
the town by controlling the number, area and location of signs in all zoning districts. The 
regulations of this article are designed among other purposes to maintain a balance between 
the need to preserve and enhance the visual integrity of the town while recognizing the 
contribution appropriate signage offers towards promoting tourism, commerce and economic 
development.  

It is the intent of this article to balance the need to protect the public safety and welfare; 
the need for a well-maintained and attractive community; and the need for adequate 
identification, communication, and advertising. The regulations for signs have the following 
specific objectives: 

(1) To ensure that signs and awnings are designed, constructed, installed, and maintained 
according to minimum standards to safeguard life, health, property, and public welfare. 
  

(2) To allow and promote positive conditions for sign communication while at the same 
time avoiding nuisances to nearby properties. 
  

(3) To reflect and support the desired character and development patterns of the various 
zones, overlay zones, and promote an attractive environment. 
  

(4) To allow for adequate and effective signs in zoning districts of the town while 
preventing signs from dominating the appearance of the area. 
  

(5) To ensure that the constitutionally guaranteed right of free speech is protected; and 
  

(6) To avoid the visual clutter that is potentially harmful to traffic and pedestrian safety, 
property values, business opportunities, and the community’s appearance. 

 
(7) To provide opportunities for adequate property identification which will enhance 

emergency response times and improve overall public safety. 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 4 

The regulations allow for a variety of sign types and sizes for a site. The provisions do not 
ensure or provide for every property or business owner’s desired level of visibility for the signs. 
The sign standards are intended to allow signs to have adequate visibility from streets and 
rights-of-way that abut a site, but not necessarily to streets and rights-of-way farther away.  

Sec. 48-282. - General regulations.  

All signs or outdoor advertising structures shall be erected, altered and maintained in 
accordance with the following provisions:  

(1) Permit required. No sign shall hereafter be erected or attached to, suspended from or 
supported on a building or structure, nor shall any existing sign be structurally altered, 
remodeled or relocated until a building permit for same has been issued by the 
planning and development department. A permit is not required for the following 
signs:  

a. Signs not exceeding three square feet in area. 

b. Temporary real estate signs, except real estate directory signs (section 48-
283(1)(d). except as required for signs listed in section 48-283(1)d. 

c. Noncommercial signs. 

d. Temporary construction signs. 

e.d. Directional signs. 

f.e An existing sign in which only the message is changed and involves no structural 
modification to the structure.  

f. Permanent signs listed in section 48-283(2) which are six square feet or less in 
area.  

(2) Material and design. All signs shall be constructed and designed according to generally 
accepted engineering practices to withstand wind pressures and load distribution as 
specified in section 1205 of the state building code, as amended.  

(3) Inspection.  

a. Each sign subject to the regulations of subsection (1) of this section may be 
subject to an annual inspection by the building inspector for the purpose of 
ensuring that the sign is maintained in a safe condition. Any fee for the annual 
inspection shall be in accordance with a regularly adopted fee schedule of the 
town.  

b. When a sign or a structure supporting a sign becomes structurally unsafe, the 
building inspector shall give written notice to the owner of the premises on which 
the sign is located that the sign shall be made safe or removed within ten days of 
receipt of such notice.  



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 5 

(4) Continuing violations. After a notice of violation, warning citation or civil citation has 
been issued, any re-erection or display, within a 12-month period, of the same sign or 
the erection or display of a substantially similar sign which is in violation of this chapter 
on the same premises shall be considered a continuance of the original violation.  

(5) Illuminated signs. All signs in which electrical wiring and connections are to be used 
shall require a permit and shall comply with the electrical code adopted by the town 
and be inspected and approved by the building inspector. All illuminated signs shall 
comply with the provisions of article IX of this chapter, outdoor lighting.  

(6) Prohibited signs.  

a. No sign shall be located within a public right-of-way except for street identification 
signs, municipal district signs placed by town staff, and official traffic control signs. 
It shall be unlawful for any person, except a public officer or employee in the 
performance of his public duty, to affix, post, paint, nail, fasten, place, or locate 
any sign, card, banner, handbill, poster, or advertising or notice of any kind, or 
cause the same to be done, upon public streets, highways, public right-of-way or 
any publicly owned or maintained property within the Town of Nags Head, or 
upon any curbstone, traffic control device, street sign, hydrant, fence, guardrail, or 
any other structure situated within any such areas or to affix the same to a wire or 
appurtenance thereof, except as may be authorized by the ordinances, laws, or 
regulations of the Town of Nags Head, the State of North Carolina or the United 
States. 

b. No sign shall be erected or maintained which is a copy or imitation of an official 
highway sign and carrying the words "STOP" or "DANGER."  

c. No sign, commercial business sign or outdoor advertising structure shall be 
erected which contains, employs or utilizes lights or lighting which rotates, flashes, 
moves or alternates; except that time and temperature displays, as defined, are 
permitted but must be included in computing allowable signage. Continuous 
printout, running or ticker-tape type message panels or signs are prohibited.  

d. No sign shall be erected which contains rotating sign panels. 

e. No sign shall obstruct visibility at an intersection or driveway as regulated in 
section 48-79.  

f. No sign shall be posted on any telegraph, telephone or electrical light pole or on 
any tree along any street.  

g. No sign shall be permitted that obstructs ingress and egress to any window, door, 
fire escape, stairway, ladder or opening intended to provide light, air, ingress or 
egress for any room or building. Signs shall not be placed in a manner that 
obstructs architectural building features such as dormers, cupolas, windows, 
rooflines or other building elements. 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 6 

h. No sign shall be permitted that violates any provision of any law of the state 
relative to outdoor advertising.  

i. All outdoor advertising signs or structures are prohibited. 

j. Signs supported in whole or in part by water, air or gas are prohibited. 

k. No real estate sign on property abutting a public trust area shall be directed 
toward any public trust area as defined by CAMA.  

l. All pennants are prohibited, effective December 6, 1995. 

m. Use of exposed neon, argon, krypton, or similar gas tube lighting shall be 
prohibited in all manners except as provided in section 48-284(2)e.  

n. Tourist-oriented directional sign (TODS). 

o. Three dimensional sculptured objects and pictorial devices attached to and 
extending more than 12 inches beyond any wall or roof of a building in business 
use. Attached sculptured objects and pictorial devices extending 12 inches or less 
from a building wall or building roof shall be classified as a business wall sign or 
roof sign and shall be subject to all regulatory requirements of this chapter 
pertaining to such signs.  

p. Roof signs within the SPD-C, Village at Nags Head C-1, C-2, hotel and institutional 
districts.  

q. LED and digital signs. 

Sec. 48-283. - Signs permitted in residential districts.  

Signs permitted in R-1, R-2, R-3, SPD-20, SED-80 and SPD-C districts are as follows:  

(1) Temporary real estate signs. Temporary real estate signs, provided that such sign shall 
be located on the site it advertises, shall be provided that they are reasonably neatly 
painted and maintained, and provided that they shall be removed when the property 
has been sold the activity or event associated with the property has ceased according 
to the criteria listed below. These signs and shall not be illuminated.  

a. "FOR SALE" sign: One "FOR SALE" sign not to exceed six square feet in area shall 
be permitted to be placed on the site it advertises.  

b. "FOR LEASE" or "FOR RENT" sign: One "FOR LEASE" or "FOR RENT" sign not to 
exceed six square feet in area shall be permitted to be placed on the principal 
building it advertises. Such sign may be placed in the required front yard where 
the principal building it advertises is greater than 100 feet from the public right-of-
way fronting the site.  

c. "OPEN HOUSE" sign: One "OPEN HOUSE" sign shall be permitted to be placed on 
the property or principal building it advertises. An agent for the sale of the 
property or building shall be present on the property when the "OPEN HOUSE" 
sign is being displayed. The one "OPEN HOUSE" sign as permitted under this 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 7 

section may take the form of either (i) a single freestanding sign not exceeding six 
square feet in area, (ii) a single banner placed on the building (excluding the roof) 
not exceeding 36 square feet in area, or (iii) a flag sign not exceeding 24 square 
feet in area.  

d. Where more than one dwelling unit exists on a site, the site may be advertised for 
sale or for rent utilizing one of the following methods:  

1. One "FOR SALE" and one "FOR RENT" sign shall be permitted in accordance 
with the provisions of subsection (1)a and b of this section;  

2. One "REAL ESTATE DIRECTORY" sign advertising the sale, rent or lease of such 
units shall be permitted in the required front yard. The maximum size of the 
directory sign shall be equal to one square foot of sign area per unit, plus 25 
percent for decorative embellishments which shall include the street address 
of the property it advertises. However, in no case shall a directory sign exceed 
36 square feet; or  

3. One "FOR SALE" and one "FOR RENT" sign not exceeding ten-inch by ten-inch 
each shall be permitted to be affixed to the exterior of each detached 
dwelling unit, individual townhouse unit or individual duplex unit.  

e. For any vacant lot in a residential district which exceeds 100 feet in frontage, one 
additional square foot of sign area shall be allowed for every ten feet of frontage 
above 100 feet. No sign shall exceed 24 square feet in area or ten feet in height.  

a. One non-illuminated sign not to exceed six square feet in area area and 36 inches 
in height measured from the ground to the top of the sign shall be permitted on 
lots where an active, unexpired building permit has been issued by the Town of 
Nags Head. Such signs shall be removed within 30 days after the issuance of a 
certificate of compliance. In lieu of the provisions of this subsection, the property 
owner may elect to use one 32-square-foot, non-illuminated sign, which shall be 
removed within 30 days after the issuance of the certificate of compliance.  

b. One freestanding, non-illuminated temporary sign shall be allowed up to six 
square feet in area area and 36 inches in height measured from the ground to the 
top of the sign on a site or property that is actively listed for sale. Where more 
than one dwelling units exist on a site or property that is actively listed for sale or 
for lease, the following signs may be erected: 

1. One freestanding sign shall be permitted in accordance with the provisions of 
subsection (1)a of this section; or 

2. One freestanding sign equal to one 1.25 square foot of sign area per unit, 
which shall include the street address of the property. However, in no case 
shall the sign exceed 36 square feet; or  



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 8 

3. One sign not exceeding ten-inches by ten-inches each shall be permitted to be 
affixed to the exterior of each detached dwelling unit, individual townhouse 
unit or individual duplex unit.  

c. At any time when a real estate agent is present on a property that is actively listed 
for sale, the following additional signs may be allowed: 

1. One additional freestanding sign up to six square feet in area and 36 inches in 
height measured from the ground to the top of the sign.  

2. A single banner placed on the building (excluding the roof) not exceeding 36 
square feet in area, or  

3. A flag sign not exceeding 24 square feet in area 

d. Signs or banners associated with a special events permit or other use on a 
designated public events site, are permitted within the designated event site but 
must be directed internally to the event and not toward the exterior of property 
or along the beach, sound or roadway. Such signs shall not be located adjacent to 
the US 158 right-of-way or abutting property lines.  

(2) Directional signs. Directional signs, provided that such signs shall be neatly painted and 
maintained, shall only convey directional information to a noncommercial 
establishment, site or facility and shall not be lighted except as provided as follows:  

a. Temporary real estate directional signs, not exceeding two square feet in area, 
directing the way to premises which are for sale, rent or lease are permitted, 
provided that such signs shall be neatly painted or printed and shall be removed 
promptly when the property has been sold, rented or leased.  

b. Directional signs not over four square feet in area indicating the location of 
churches, schools, hospitals, parks, scenic or historic places, or other places of 
general interest. Such signs shall not exceed three feet in total height.  

c. Directional signs at municipal parks, playgrounds, designated public event sites 
and governmental (federal, state, local) facilities, not over 12 square feet in sign 
area indicating the location of offices, parking areas, recycling stations, and other 
facilities shall be permitted. The sign(s) may be illuminated in accordance with 
article IX of this chapter.  

d. Directional signs at hospital sites, not to exceed 48 square feet in sign area, 
indicating the location of onsite hospital and medical office facilities. The sign(s) 
may be illuminated in accordance with article IX of this chapter.  

e. Temporary yard sale directional signs, in accordance with chapter 12, article VI.  

(3) Construction sign. Temporary, nonilluminated construction signs not to exceed six 
square feet in area shall be permitted, provided that such signs shall be limited to one 
to each organization involved and shall be removed within 30 days after the issuance 
of the certificate of compliance. In lieu of the provisions of this subsection, the general 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 9 

contractor may elect to use one 32-square-foot, nonilluminated construction sign, 
which shall be removed within 30 days after the issuance of the certificate of 
compliance. Construction signs may include the name of the site or business under 
construction, provided that all text, including letters, logos, and symbols for the name 
of the site or business, are sized equal to or smaller than text, logos, or symbols 
provided elsewhere on the sign.  

(4) Bulletin board sign. One name sign or bulletin board not to exceed 16 square feet shall 
be permitted for any church, school or other noncommercial institution, which sign or 
board may be indirectly lighted and shall be set back at least 15 feet from the front 
property line.  

(5) Home occupation sign. A nonilluminated nameplate or professional sign not over one 
square foot in area and attached flat against the building shall be allowed in 
association with a home occupation.  

(6) Identification sign. The following identification signs are permitted, provided that such 
sign shall be located on the site it identifies, shall be neatly painted and maintained 
and shall be limited only to announcing the name, owner and location of the site:  

a. One identification sign per unit not to exceed two square feet in sign area shall be 
permitted for single-family and two-family sites.  

b. Two subdivision identification signs not to exceed 32 square feet each in sign area 
shall be permitted at the major entrance of the subdivision and may be 
illuminated.  

c. One multifamily dwelling unit identification sign not to exceed 32 square feet in 
sign area shall be permitted, provided that such sign shall include the street 
address of the site it identifies and may be illuminated.  

d. Two public park identification signs not to exceed 48 square feet each in sign area 
shall be permitted at the major entrance to a public park, provided that such sign 
shall be located on the site it identifies, shall be neatly painted and maintained, 
and shall be limited to announcing the name, owner, location and hours of 
operation of the park. The sign may be illuminated in accordance with article IX of 
this chapter, outdoor lighting.  

e. One freestanding governmental (federal, state, local) and publicly owned 
identification sign not to exceed 64 square feet in sign area shall be permitted at 
the major entrance to a governmental or publicly owned site or designated public 
events site and may be illuminated in accordance with article IX of this chapter. 
Such sign shall not exceed ten feet in height and shall be limited to identifying only 
the name of the site and the advertisement of current and future meetings or 
events that are located entirely on the site. Where the property has frontage on 
both US 158 and NC 12 public right-of-ways, one freestanding sign not exceeding 
64 square feet in area shall be permitted to be located adjacent to each public 
right-of-way. Where the property is on a corner lot with frontage on more than 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 10 

one public right-of-way, a maximum of two freestanding signs shall be permitted. 
One freestanding sign not exceeding 64 square feet in areas shall be permitted 
adjacent to the public right-of-way boundary of the designated front yard of the 
property. One freestanding sign not exceeding 24 square feet shall be permitted 
adjacent to a public right-of-way boundary of a designated side yard of the 
property. The freestanding sign permitted in the side yard shall be located no 
closer than 70 feet to the designated front yard public right-of-way boundary and 
installed so that the sign face is perpendicular to the side yard public right-of-way 
boundary.  

f. Identification signs or banners for individual vendors or sponsors associated with a 
special events permit or other use on a designated public events site, are 
permitted within the designated event site but must be directed internally to the 
event and not toward the exterior of property or along the beach, sound or 
roadway. Such signs shall not be located adjacent to the US 158 right-of-way or 
abutting property lines.  

g. One governmental (federal, state, local) building identification sign shall be 
permitted per building, not to exceed 12 square feet in sign area and shall be 
permanently attached to the building that it identifies. The sign may be 
illuminated in accordance with article IX of this chapter.  

(7) Medical office sign. One freestanding sign per site, permanently located on the 
ground, which may be illuminated, and shall not exceed 24 square feet in sign area, 
shall be permitted for a medical office. Any such sign and mounting shall not exceed 
ten feet in total height.  

(8) Concession buildings. Concession buildings as an accessory conditional use to parks, 
shall be allowed one sign not exceeding 12 square feet in sign area and shall be 
permanently attached to the building where the concession activity occurs. The sign 
shall not be illuminated.  

(9) Hospitals. Hospitals may have two square feet of sign area for each lineal foot of 
building frontage on U.S. 158 which may be used as wall signs, onsite directional signs, 
window signs, and one freestanding sign, provided that the freestanding sign shall not 
exceed 64 square feet in area nor more than 20 feet in height above street grade, and 
may be illuminated. Any authorized off-site directional signs shall not count against 
this allocation of signage.  

(2) Permanent Signs 

a. All properties shall be permitted to contain one sign not to exceed six square feet 
in area to be placed on the wall of the principal structure. Where the principal 
structure is greater than 100 feet from the public right of way fronting the site, an 
additional sign may be placed in the front yard, meeting the following criteria: 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 11 

1. The sign shall not exceed three square feet in area. The frame surrounding 
the sign face shall not be included as part of the sign area provided that the 
framing materials are no greater than 4” x 4” in thickness. 

2. The sign shall not exceed 36 inches in height measured from the ground to 
the top of the sign. 

3. The sign shall not create an obstruction to visibility for vehicles entering and 
exiting driveways. 

4. Amortization. Front yard signs made non-conforming by this subsection shall 
comply with these regulations by January 1, 2019. 

b. One bulletin board not to exceed 16 square feet shall be permitted for any church, 
school or other noncommercial institution, which sign or board may be indirectly 
lighted and shall be set back at least 15 feet from the front property line.  

c. One non-illuminated sign not over one square foot in area and attached flat 
against the building shall be allowed at a residential property with an approved 
home occupation.  

d. Non-Commerical Identification signs. The following signs are permitted, provided 
that such sign is located on the site it identifies and is reasonably maintained:  

1. One wall mounted non-commerical identification sign per unit not to exceed six 
square feet in sign area shall be permitted for single-family and two-family 
sites.  

2. One freestanding non-commercial identification sign per unit not to exceed 
three square feet in sign area shall be permitted for single-family and two-
family sites. 

3. Two signs, which may be illuminated, may be placed at the primary entrance to 
a subdivision not to exceed 32 square feet each in sign area.  

4. One sign, which may be illuminated, may be permitted at the site of a multi-
family residential property not to exceed 32 square feet in sign area.  

5. Two signs, which may be illuminated, may be permitted at the major entrance 
to a public park not to exceed 48 square feet each in sign area.  

6. One freestanding sign, which may be illuminated, shall be permitted at the 
major entrance to a governmental or publicly owned site or designated public 
events site not to exceed 64 square feet in sign area. Such sign shall not exceed 
ten feet in height. Where the property has frontage on both US 158 and NC 12 
public right-of-ways, one freestanding sign not exceeding 64 square feet in area 
shall be permitted to be located adjacent to each public right-of-way. Where 
the property is on a corner lot with frontage on more than one public right-of-
way, a maximum of two freestanding signs shall be permitted. One 
freestanding sign not exceeding 64 square feet in areas shall be permitted 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 12 

adjacent to the public right-of-way boundary of the designated front yard of 
the property. One freestanding sign not exceeding 24 square feet shall be 
permitted adjacent to a public right-of-way boundary of a designated side yard 
of the property. The freestanding sign permitted in the side yard shall be 
located no closer than 70 feet to the designated front yard public right-of-way 
boundary and installed so that the sign face is perpendicular to the side yard 
public right-of-way boundary.  

7. One sign, which may be illuminated, may be placed against the wall of a 
governmental building (local, state, or federal) not to exceed 12 square feet in 
sign area.  

e. One freestanding sign, which may be illuminated, may be placed on the site of a 
medical office building not to exceed 24 square feet in sign area and ten feet in 
total height.  

f. Hospitals may have two square feet of sign area for each lineal foot of building 
frontage on U.S. 158 which may be used as wall signs, signs adjacent to internal 
drive aisle not exceed 20 inches in height, window signs, and one freestanding 
sign, provided that the freestanding sign shall not exceed 64 square feet in area 
nor more than 20 feet in height above street grade, and may be illuminated.  

Sec. 48-284. - Signs permitted in commercial districts and the commercial/residential district.  

Signs permitted in the C-2, C-3, C-4 and CR districts are as follows:  

(1) All signs permitted in section 48-283, signs permitted in residential districts.  

(2) For each premises in business use, or for each commercial site for which the town has 
approved a site plan and has issued a building permit, three square feet of business 
sign area for each lineal foot of frontage on a public right-of-way shall be permitted 
not to exceed a total of 600 square feet. Such sign area may be in a single sign or in a 
combination of signs subject to the following limitations:  

a. Wall signs placed against the exterior front and side walls of a building shall be 
permitted, provided that they shall not extend more than 12 inches beyond the 
building wall surface and shall not exceed 20 percent of the exposed finished wall 
surface area including openings on the wall where it is placed. Wall signs shall not 
be permitted on the rear wall of a building except for (1) buildings located on 
property with frontage on both US 158 and either NC 12 or Wrightsville Avenue, 
and (2) for buildings containing multiple business uses where public entry to an 
individual business is limited solely to the rear of the building, (3) rear wall signs 
not visible from the street right-of-way and adjoining properties, and (4) rear wall 
signs, upon structures located adjacent to US 158, where not visible from any 
residential use or residentially zoned property.  

b. One banner not to exceed 36 square feet in sign area shall be permitted to be 
placed on the principal building (exclusive of the roof and rear wall) in business 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 13 

use. When a banner is used in combination with wall signs, the total banner and 
wall signage shall not exceed 20 percent of the exposed finished wall surface area 
including openings.  

c. Only one freestanding sign shall be permitted to be located permanently on the 
property and shall not exceed 64 square feet in area and shall not exceed 20 feet 
in height above street grade.  

Where the property has frontage on both US 158 and NC 12 public right-of-ways, 
one freestanding sign not exceeding 64 square feet in area shall be permitted to 
be located adjacent to each public right-of-way.  

Where the property is a corner lot with frontage on more than one public right-of-
way, a maximum of two freestanding signs shall be permitted. One freestanding 
sign not exceeding 64 square feet in area shall be permitted adjacent to the public 
right-of-way boundary of the designated front yard of the property. One 
freestanding sign not exceeding 32 square feet in area shall be permitted adjacent 
to a public right-of-way boundary of a designated side yard of the property. The 
freestanding sign permitted in the side yard shall be located no closer than 70 feet 
to the designated front yard public right-of-way boundary and installed so that the 
sign face is perpendicular to the side yard public right-of-way boundary.  

d. Roof signs shall be permitted not to exceed ten feet in height above the 
roof or parapet wall and shall not exceed five percent of the total floor area of 
the building or 300 square feet in area, whichever is less. Roof sign displays shall 
only be directed to either the front or side of the property upon which it is 
located.  

Roof signs shall not exceed 25% of 
the individual roof plane area to 
which they are attached. In no 
instance shall an individual roof sign 
exceed 60 square feet in area. There 
shall be no more than two roof signs 
per building.  

Roof signs shall not be taller than 10 
feet from the lowest point of 
attachment to the roof. In no 
instance shall roof signs exceed the 
maximum height limit for the zoning district in which the sign is permitted. 

Roof signs with external lighting shall be lit from the top down to avoid the glare 
and sky illumination characteristics of spot lighting or up lighting.  

 



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 14 

e. Window signs shall be permitted to be placed only inside a commercial building 
and shall not exceed 25 percent of the glass area of the pane upon which the sign 
is displayed. Window signs of exposed neon, argon, krypton or similar gas tube 
lighting shall be permittable, provided that such signs shall not exceed 25 percent 
of glass pane area, and shall not exceed singly, or in combination 0.15-square-foot 
per lineal foot of store frontage, not to exceed 20 square feet of sign area for any 
one store.  

f. One temporary sandwich sign shall be permitted to be located on the ground but 
shall not exceed ten square feet in area on each side and shall not exceed four 
feet in height. Such sign shall be placed on the premises of the business it 
advertises and shall be exhibited only during business hours of the establishment. 
The sign shall be anchored in such a way as to withstand wind action from all 
directions as required by the state building code, as amended.  

g. One flag sign shall be permitted in accordance with the specifications listed in the 
definition for flag sign as described in section 48-7, definition of specific words and 
terms. The maximum freestanding signage shall not be increased in lieu of not 
flying a flag sign.  

h. Outdoor stands shall be allowed one temporary sign attached to the stand. Such 
sign shall not exceed 15 square feet in area or extend above the roof of the stand. 
This sign area shall be exempt from the calculation of total commercial site sign 
area limitations imposed by this subsection.  

(3) In any vacant site in a commercial district, the following is allowed without a permit: 
One temporary real estate sign, not exceeding six square feet in area, shall be 
permitted for the purpose of advertising the sale, rent or lease of the site, provided 
that such sign shall not be less than 15 feet from any street right-of-way or lot line, 
shall not be illuminated and shall be reasonably neatly painted and maintained. For 
lots which exceed 100 feet in frontage, one additional square foot of sign area shall be 
allowed for every ten feet of frontage above 100 feet. No sign shall exceed 32 square 
feet in area or 15 feet in height.  

Sec. 48-285. - Noncommercial signs.  

Noncommercial signs are permitted anywhere that advertising or commercial signs are 
permitted, subject to the same regulations applicable to such signs. 

Noncommercial signs shall be permitted in all districts, except the Ocean and Sound 
Waters District, on vacant and developed lots, subject to the following limitations:  

(1) No sign shall exceed 16 square feet in area on each side. 

(2) No sign shall exceed ten feet in height above street grade. 

(3) The side yard and front yard setback from any property line shall be at least five feet. 
In the case of a corner lot, the sight distance requirement of section 48-79 shall be 
met.  



Draft Modifications to the Town of Nags Head Sign Ordinance 

 

  Page 15 

(4) Any symbols, letters or other identifying characteristics describing the sponsor of a 
noncommercial sign shall not exceed four inches in height and may not be repeated on 
the same face of the sign.  

(5) A noncommercial sign shall contain no commercial advertising or statements, logos, 
designs or trademarks designed or intended to promote or produce financial gain 
other than donations for charitable organizations such as groups which are tax exempt 
pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.  

Sec. 48-286. - Exemptions.  

Municipal portable message signs used for the display of public safety information and 
government regulatory information, and directional signage to public recreational destinations 
shall be exempt from the requirements of this article. The town manager shall review and 
approve all messages and all directional signage exempted by this section.  

 



Nags Head Local Business Ad Hoc Committee Meeting 

January 28, 2016 Minutes 

Nags Head Town Hall; Conference Room 

 

Committee Members Present:  Annette Ratzenberger, Anne Farmer, Gayle Drummond, Garry Oliver, 

Jody Crosswhite, Gus Zinovis, Bob Sanders, Carole Sykes, Ralph Buxton, Commissioner Renee Cahoon, 

Deputy Town Manager Andy Garman and Deputy Planning Director Kelly Wyatt.    

Public Present: No members of the public present. 

Commissioner Renee Cahoon opened the meeting, welcomed the committee members and thanked 

them all for returning in 2016.  

Adoption of Minutes:  October 15, 2015.  Jody Crosswhite made a motion to approve the minutes as 

written.  Annette Ratzenberger seconded the motion and the minutes were approved unanimously.  

Staff member, Kelly Wyatt briefly updated the committee on the status of the Landscape and Buffering 

Ordinance which the committee first identified as a potential obstacle and then became instrumental in 

helping guide and draft the ordinance amendment.  The Public Hearing for this ordinance amendment is 

scheduled for the Board of Commissioners February 3, 2016 meeting. 

Commissioner Renee Cahoon opened discussion of outdoor displays of merchandise and inventory.  

Deputy Town Manager, Andy Garman noted that staff gave a brief presentation of this item to the Board 

of Commissioners at their January 2016 retreat at which time they requested the Local Business 

Committee discuss the issues and concerns and begin developing potential regulations.  Staff quickly 

went through a slideshow, previously shown to the committee, of the commercial properties within the 

Town where the outdoor displays are most prevalent.  Mr. Garman noted that it was his understanding 

from speaking with others that at one point the Town only allowed outdoor displays under the porch or 

awning of a storefront but overtime we had apparently gotten away from this policy/interpretation.   

Annette Ratzenberger commented that ACE Hardware demonstrated that they were able to pull their 

display and inventory in prior to Hurricane Joaquin.  It was noted that ACE Hardware was constructed 

prior to the Town’s landscaping and buffering codes which require a row of plantings between parking 

areas adjacent to a right-of-way.  It was also noted that ACE had been denied the use of an adjoining 

vacant lot the west of the store property for storage purposes due to its residential zoning designation.  

Garry Oliver commented that he felt the height of the displays may need regulation and he felt that a 

requirement that any outdoor displays be taken inside at the end of the day would significantly reduce 

the amount of displays.  Having the responsibility to take it all inside would be time consuming and 

therefore store managers would be less likely to place a lot of merchandise outside.  Gus Zinovis 

inquired that, if that were to be imposed, where would the merchandise be moved to overnight?  Could 

it be placed under the porch, awning or eave of the store?   Annette Ratzenbeger felt that if the 

merchandise could be taken inside/stored during the hurricane it could readily be done at any given 



time.  Jody Crosswhite stated that the Town of Kill Devil Hills had been considering regulating outdoor 

displays and had recently adopted an ordinance.  Jody shared this ordinance with the committee 

members.  Jody noted that the ordinance spoke to the removal or replacement of torn, tattered flags 

and the number of display items allowed per location within an approved display area.  Several 

committee members inquired on whether this type of regulation, number and height, would pertain to 

the kites at Kitty Hawk Kites or at Jockeys Ridge Crossing?  Staff felt as though it would not.  Bob Sanders 

inquired about the types of flags the Town permits – flag signs vs. flags.  Staff confirmed only one flag 

sign is permitted per site while flags with no messages are allowed at one flag per 20 ft. of road 

frontage.  Annette Ratzenberger noted that a sign could be made of plastic, however it would likely not 

last long or hold up well.  Gus Zinovis noted that he had tried to use a plastic flag once and it did not 

hold up for any amount of time.  The committee recommended that the ordinance be revised to remove 

“plastic” from allowable materials for flags signs.  Gus asked if there was a size or area limit for flag 

signs; staff noted that there is a 24 square foot limit.  Ralph Buxton asked if this pertained to banners; 

staff noted that banners could be up to 36 square feet in area.  Garry Oliver noted that while there 

currently is a height limit for flag signs, the 24 square foot limit on the area of sign actually limits the 

height of the flag sign.  Mr. Garman stated that at their retreat the Board of Commissioners discussed a 

possible 12 foot height limit.  Gus Zinovis noted that these flags and flag signs are usually 2 ft. off the 

ground so a height limit of 14 or 15 feet for the pole might be better.  Committee members noted that 

these types of flag signs and pole structures did not require engineering because they were not on 

permanent structures.  Gus Zinovis commented that while not all commercial businesses have outdoor 

displays it only takes two or three displays in consecutive locations to create visual clutter.  Gus asked if 

staff had approached any of the businesses that currently have these displays to discuss the concerns.  

Staff noted that this was just in the discussion phase and the store managers and owners had not been 

contacted.  The committee unanimously felt that there should be some communication with the store 

managers and owners and that we could pull them into the next meeting for discussion.  It was the 

consensus of the committee that they obtain feedback from the affected properties.  Commissioner 

Cahoon noted that ACE Hardware did have history with their outdoor display in that they had 

approached the Town many years ago to utilize an adjoining property in same ownership for storage 

and the Town denied the request because it was zoned residentially and not commercially.  Carole Sykes 

commented that she personally felt that the display at ACE Hardware is orderly, kept clean and there 

are no damaged or unsightly materials on site.  Jody Croswhite noted that properties with outdoor 

displays had to be treated equally, whether we found the display aesthetically pleasing or not.  Jody 

expressed that there is potential for these displays to grow and we should address it before it becomes a 

larger problem.  Commissioner Cahoon agreed that there had to be equal treatment of all businesses.  

Ralph Buxton stated that the issue seems to primarily be the displays along US Highway 158 and maybe 

there is some way of regulating them through road frontage.  Anne Farmer noted that if the Town were 

to consider imposing a requirement that displays meet the 130mph wind requirement that would 

eliminate most if not all of the current displays.  Carole Sykes felt that the displays do help to attract 

people in that it gives passerby’s an idea of the availability of the product.  Would a minimalistic 

approach affect this?  Commissioner Cahoon commented that the Town’s desire is to improve the 

appearance and character of the Town, that regulation might be towards minimizing the effects of these 

displays, not eliminating them in their entirety.  Ralph Buxton told the committee of his experience in 



Kitty Hawk where the Town insisted he limit the number of kayaks displayed at his commercial location 

however Wal-Mart was permitted to have a large display of kayak, canoes, etc. in their parking area.  In 

wrapping up discussions on this item the committee came to a consensus that it was important to talk 

to the store managers and business owners that had a stake in any proposed revisions and that they 

would like the businesses to be invited to the next meeting to have a discussion and give the committee 

feedback.   

Commissioner Cahoon introduced the next item for discussion, proposed revisions to the Town’s sign 

ordinance in light of a Supreme Court ruling on content neutrality.  Commissioner Cahoon briefly 

discussed the status of freestanding residential signage in light of their previous recommendation and 

current discussions with the Planning Board.  She noted that Planning Board Chairman, Mark Cornwell, 

had requested the Local Business Committee discuss this item again in light of a recommended area for 

freestanding residential signage and maximum height of the signs.  Staff had prepared a visual to convey 

the 6 square foot signage currently allowed and how 1.5 square feet and 3 square feet appeared in 

comparison.  The committee discussed the current signage noting that the point of the signage is to 

locate the home and to find the house number however the house number is not usually the most 

visually prominent part of the sign.  To accomplish what the property managers feel is most important 

the house number should be highlighted and everything else should be minimized.   Annette 

Ratzenberger noted that the height of the current signage is concerning, that considering a lower profile 

sign would be beneficial while still getting the necessary information out.  It was noted that nowadays 

with GPS in phones and programmed into cars finding a house is not as difficult it used to be.  Annette 

Ratzenberger and Carole Skyes both commented on the use of phone apps by the rental companies to 

help patrons find their rental homes.   Garry Oliver noted that it often appears the majority of the sign 

area is used as advertising and marketing, not to simply convey house information.  Staff member Andy 

Garman reminded the committee that these freestanding signs are only allowed when the home itself is 

setback at or more than 100 feet from the right of way.  Mr. Garman noted that he had received 

complaints about these freestanding signs from realtors who wanted to stay anonymous.  These realtors 

noted that the Town’s appearance is key in keeping and maintaining visitors, not cluttered roadways.   

Gus Zinovis inquired about what type of input the Planning Board was seeking and what were they 

considering.  Commissioner Cahoon stated that the Planning Board is interested in getting feedback 

from the Local Business Committee on the height and area of the freestanding signage.  Garry Oliver 

stated that the signage on the house itself was not concerning but the proliferation of freestanding 

rental signs along the road is and therefore he would recommend the size of the freestanding signage be 

reduced to 1.5 square feet to accommodate the pertinent rental information such as house number, 

and that 2 feet  in height would be appropriate.   Staff noted that the property managers had attended 

the last Planning Board and did not feel that 1.5 square feet would be adequate.  Garry Oliver noted that 

he had spoken with Dan Hardy and was aware of their position however he maintained the adequacy of 

1.5 square feet.  Annette Ratzenberger noted that, if the purpose of the signage is help visitors find their 

home, than 1.5 square feet dedicated to the house number should be adequate.  Staff re-iterated that 

the new regulations prohibit governing any signage based on content.   Anne Farmer noted that South 

Nags Head seems to be the worst visually when it comes to these signs.  Staff member Andy Garman 

pulled a photograph of a Village Realty sign measuring 12” x 20” where the house number was the 



smallest print on the sign and barely visible.   Ralph Buxton noted that these signs appear to serve as off-

site signage with the majority of the area of the sign devoted to logo’s and branding.  The committee 

was in agreement.  Bob Sanders and Gus Zinovis commented that a 2 square foot sign including the 

border/frame as opposed to the previously recommended 1.5 square feet would be more appropriate.  

It was the consensus of the committee to proceed with a recommendation to the Planning Board of 2 

square feet in area and 2 feet in height from grade to the top of the sign.  Andy Garman noted that 

there was also consideration being given to an amortization period to bring these signs into compliance.  

Carole Sykes commented that many property managers re-use their signs; Andy Garman replied that 

several managers had indicated they just apply stickers over the revised information.  Mr. Garman 

commented that the Planning Board had been considering a 1 year amortization period. The committee 

felt as though placing a date of January 1, 2018 for compliance would be best as it would allow 

companies two rental cycles (seasons) before compliance.   It was unanimous among the Local Business 

Committee that the recommendation to the Planning Board regarding freestanding residential signage 

be to lower the area of the sign from 6 square feet to 2 square feet including the frame, to place a 

maximum height of 2 feet from grade to the top of the sign and to include an amortization period 

extending through the January 1, 2018.   

It was asked if the committee had other items they would like to discuss before adjourning.  Ralph 

Buxton said he did have a question regarding the bypass and the various media outlets indicating a long 

range plan for a boulevard, 4 lanes with a median versus 6 lanes.  Staff member Andy Garman stated 

that there had been some confusion with regard to this and he believed that this information was from 

an older Transportation Improvement Program that had not been updated.  Commissioner Renee 

Cahoon noted that it would be beneficial to have fellow Commissioner John Ratzenberger attend the 

next meeting; he is the Town representative on the Albemarle Rural Planning Organization (ARPO) and 

was very familiar with current transportation initiatives and funding and scoring of projects.  Jody 

Crosswhite inquired if there had been a recent Comprehensive Transportation Plan adopted by the 

County, Mr. Garman noted that yes, there was.  

 Commissioner Cahoon informed the committee that NCDOT is still reviewing the request to have the 

speed limit reduced to 45 mph on US 158. 

Anne Farmer asked if, due to the town wide recycling program, the Town would be eliminating the small 

recycling centers located throughout the Town.  Mr. Garman noted that the recycling containers at 

Town Hall would remain but was unsure about the other locations.   

With no other items for discussion Commissioner Cahoon thanked all the committee members for their 

participation and the next meeting was scheduled for Thursday, March 24, 2016 at 2:30 pm. 

The meeting adjourned at 3:45 pm. 

 

 



Nags Head Local Business Ad Hoc Committee Meeting 

May 14th, 2015 Minutes 

Nags Had Town Hall; Conference Room 

 

Committee Members Present:  Garry Oliver, Annette Ratzenberger, Bob Sanders, Ralph Buxton, Gus 

Zinovis, Carole Sykes, Jody Crosswhite, Commissioner Renee Cahoon, Deputy Town Manager Andy 

Garman, Deputy Planning Director Kelly Wyatt, Principal Planner Holly White.    

Public Present: No members of the public present. 

Commissioner Renee Cahoon opened the meeting, welcomed the committee members. 

Adoption of Minutes:  April 23rd, 2015.  Jody Crosswhite made a motion to adopt the minutes as 

presented, Gus Zinovis seconded the motion.  The minutes were adopted by unanimous vote.   

Staff member, Kelly Wyatt updated the committee on the status of the nonconforming sign ordinance 

which originated through discussion and consensus of the committee.  The ordinance had been 

presented to the Board of Commissioners and had received support to be forwarded to the Planning 

Board for formal review.   

Deputy Town Manager, Andy Garman continued discussions with the committee on drafting and 

providing more flexible ordinance language related to landscaping and buffering requirements.  Mr. 

Garman passed out proposed amendments for allowance of an “Administrative Adjustment”.   This 

would provide an administrative/staff level mechanism to allow minor variations, or adjustments to 

certain dimensional requirements or numerical standards such as setbacks, parking and height to be 

approved by staff.  Staff indicated that this type of allowance may be beneficial in relation to 

landscaping and buffering in that we could vary the number of required parking spaces to accommodate 

preserving significant or substantial vegetation when in the proximity of the parking lot.  Commissioner 

Cahoon asked that the committee review this ordinance and be prepared to offer comments at the next 

scheduled meeting.  

Staff member, Kelly Wyatt asked the committee to revisit the discussion on rooftop signage.  Draft 

ordinance and language had been presented at the previous meeting and comments, feedback, 

suggestions would be welcomed.  Committee members expressed a concern in the allowable height of 

rooftop signage, staff confirmed that the rooftop sign, as proposed by this ordinance, would be limited 

to the maximum height of the district in which it is located, typically 35 feet.  It was noted that rooftop 

signs are engineered to withstand the winds and elements.  Staff clarified that a roof sign could be 

located at the peak of the roof or along the angular main roof or porch roof.  Commissioner Cahoon 

noted that the ordinance limits the area of the sign to 5% of the total floor area or 300 square feet, 

whichever is less.  The committee discussed this language at length and agreed that 300 square feet of 

roof top signage is too large and that for businesses with substantial floor area even the 5% could result 



in signage larger than what the Town envisions.  To give the committee a reference point, Gus Zinovis 

stated that he has a rooftop sign on his restaurant (Mulligans) and it is approximately 60 sq. ft. in area.  

Jody Crosswhite noted that Forbes Candy had a large rooftop sign that sustained storm damage, 

approximately 5x50 in size.  Andy Garman noted that the committee may want to consider a signage 

ratio based upon the plane of the roof so as the sign is more proportionate to the building scale.  

Commissioner Cahoon stated that the floor area percentage may be obsolete and using a rooftop plane 

ratio with maximum square footage may be worth additional consideration.  Andy Garman also noted 

that the square footage allowance for a freestanding business shall not exceed 64 square feet and 

questioned whether the Town would want a rooftop sign larger than a freestanding sign.  Annette 

Ratzenberger expressed that while she was fine with the signage she would like to ensure that any 

lighting be down-lit preserving the night sky.  Staff noted that they would prepare some examples for 

the committee to review. 

Staff member, Holly White briefly updated the committee members on the Action Item Chart that she 

had previously discussed.  This Plan indicated the issues that the committee had discussed to date, the 

progress to date, upcoming necessary actions, the responsible party and timeframe for completion.  

Holly noted that this was a lot of information to digest and requested that committee members review 

the document and provide any comments, feedback or suggestions at the next scheduled meeting.   

Staff updated the committee on the status of compiling a list of all business owners within the Town for 

the purpose of possibly creating business association.  Staff noted that they will work to provide a 

concise list as soon as possible.  Commissioner Cahoon noted that staff should check with the Police 

Department as they may have a listing of business owner information for the purpose of sending out 

alerts.  Staff also stated that the Town could provide a mechanism on the Town’s website for business 

owners to sign for an email/distribution list as well as providing information on water bills and privilege 

licenses.  Annette Ratzenberger noted that this request for information could be placed within Town’s 

weekly newsletter broadcast by Public Information Officer, Roberta Thuman. 

The committee brought up items from the Action Plan related to “branding”, specifically creating an 

“app” to assist vendors and visitors in orienting themselves to find specific destinations. Commissioner 

Cahoon recommended consideration be given seeking a student/intern to work on this – or to have an 

“app contest” at the high school to help with this project.  The committee discussed having something 

that would identify beach accesses, cultural destinations, retail and restaurant locations, and recreation 

areas.  The committee felt this was a good idea and should be pursued.  

Jody Crosswhite noted that the Action Plan provided great talking points and asked if it was the Town’s 

desire to have the committee help prioritize the items included.  Holly White felt that would be helpful 

and noted that some items, such as T-3 (multi-use paths) would be an ongoing priority.  Andy Garman 

recommended the committee consider ranking their Top 10 Items. 

Ralph Buxton stated that he had some safety concerns with connectivity in and around the Outdoor-

Commercial Recreation Overlay District and would like special consideration be given to this particular 

area.  The committee discussed the difficulty and hazards of crossing 158, the lighting levels at night and 



the speed limit.  Commissioner Cahoon stated that there had been discussion of reducing the speed 

along the Little Bridge, others noted that the median in this area is confusing and better signage is 

necessary.  Commissioner Cahoon asked the committee if they were interested in requesting the speed 

limit be seasonally lowered to 45 mph, the committee was interested and felt like the top priority 

should be the area of recreation overlay including the causeway.  Some committee members felt this 

speed limit reduction would be more difficult to enforce if done in segments.  Ralph Buxton made a 

formal motion to request that the speed limit be reduced to 45 mph seasonally in the Recreation 

Overlay District.  Gus Zinovis seconded the motion, the vote was unanimous. 

Gus Zinovis inquired about the residential real estate signs along the roadway and any ordinances 

regulating them.  Commissioner Cahoon noted that this had been a topic of discussion that the Planning 

Board and Board of Commissioners had considering as there had been numerous complaints.  The 

majority of these signs appear to be Village Realty and Joe Lamb Realty.  The committee agreed that 

there is likely a need to have some type of realty company identifier but the roadside signage could be 

smaller in area and lower in height to be less obtrusive.  The committee felt as though a small sign at the 

road (1.5 sq. ft.) and a larger sign on the house (6 sq. ft.) would be adequate but it would be helpful to 

have the 911 address at the road as well.  Andy Garman noted that the majority of these signs are along 

NC 12 and NC1243 for longer, ocean front lots.   Andy noted that the comments and recommendations 

from this committee would be relayed to the Planning Board at their upcoming May 19, 2015 meeting. 

The committee inquired about how long this committee would remain in place.  Commissioner Cahoon 

noted that the committee would continue to meet as long as there are items to review and we continue 

to make progress and move forward. 

Commissioner Cahoon thanked all the committee members for their participation and the next meeting 

was scheduled for June 11, 2015 at 2:30 pm. 

The meeting adjourned at 4:30 pm. 

 

 

 



1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Commissioners/Planning Board 

FROM: Andy Garman, Deputy Town Manager 
 Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director and Zoning Administrator 

DATE: March 11, 2016 

SUBJECT: Joint Planning Board/Board of Commissioners Discussion Regarding Freestanding 
Residential Signage. 

 
 
At its April 2015 meeting, the Planning Board began discussing an issue referred by the Board 
of Commissioners related to real estate rental signs. Board members had been receiving 
comments related to the negative impact on the appearance of the beach road caused by the 
proliferation of real estate rental signs. The Planning Board discussed this issue for several 
months and continues to evaluate recommendations from staff and from the Town’s Local 
Business Committee regarding the issue. In January of 2016, the Planning Board held a meeting 
with representatives from property management companies to receive input on these 
recommendations. At the conclusion of the discussion, the Planning Board directed staff to draft 
several options for modifying the regulations to include new sign area and height standards as 
well as a setback distance from the front property line. A draft of this ordinance was presented 
and discussed at the Planning Board’s February meeting. Staff also provided photos to compare 
what these options will look like relative to the existing signs. The February discussion 
concluded with the Planning Board tabling the item to receive more public input and direction 
from the Board of Commissioners. This memo contains a history of this issue as well as what 
was presented to the Planning Board at its February meeting. 
 
The Planning Board/Board of Commissioners are aware that the Local Business Committee 
made a recommendation last year on modifying the allowable size for these signs to 1.5 square 
feet with and a maximum height of 2 feet. The Local Business Committee met again in January 
of 2016 and received an update on the issue including an overview of the discussions from the 
January 2016 Planning Board meeting with property managers. The Planning Board Chair 
suggested that the Local Business Committee provide a final recommendation on the issue 
considering the additional input that has been received. The Local Business Committee was 
shown visual representations of various sign options in order to assist with the discussion. After 
reviewing these visuals and discussing the issue at length, the Local Business Committee made 
a recommendation to modify the allowable sign area to 2 square feet with a maximum height of 
2 feet above grade to the top of the sign. The Local Business Committee also discussed what 
would be a reasonable timeframe to allow the signs to be modified to comply with new 
standards. A date of January 1, 2018 was suggested since this would provide two additional 
seasons for the signs. This was included in the Committee’s recommendation. 
 



2 

Background      
 

As background, the Town currently has an ordinance that 
allows a single-family dwelling to have a “for rent” sign 
attached to the structure for the purpose of identifying 
the rental house number and the contact information for 
the property management company. The signs may be 
up to six square feet in area. In cases where structures 
are located more than 100 feet from the street right-of-
way, the ordinance allows a freestanding sign to be 
placed in the yard. There is no minimum height for these 
signs and no required setback. This allowance has been 
provided to increase the visibility of rental signs where 
they would be difficult to see from the road.  

 
These signs are primarily located on the east side of NC 12 and SR 1243 where oceanfront lots 
are deep and where houses are located further from the road. Along the Town’s 11 mile length, 
there are roughly 600 lots that are in either single-family or duplex uses that extend from the 
oceanfront to the road. In nearly all of these cases, the dwellings are located far enough from 
the road to qualify for a freestanding rental sign. An inventory of freestanding rental signs by 
company is provided below: 
 

Joe Lamb 56 

Village Realty 35 

Carolina Designs 34 

Outer Banks Blue 20 

Stan White  15 

Resort Realty 8 

Beach Realty 7 

Seaside Vacation 5 

Other 5 

Brindley Beach 2 

Carolina Dunes 1 

Total 188 

 
It should be noted that the Village at Nags Head does not allow freestanding rental signs. With 
that said, the Town currently has less than half the number of rental signs that could be placed 
if a sign were to be placed at each eligible property.  
 
Staff has received input from a number of individuals since the Planning Board began discussing 
the issue. These individuals consisted of citizens, members of the local business committee, and 
local realtors. There was a clear theme that emerged from this input that the proliferation of 
these signs creates a negative image for the Town. Specific comments are paraphrased below: 
 

- It appears as if everything’s for sale. 

- The signs serve as additional advertising rather than wayfinding for guests. 

- The signs detract from the aesthetics of the Town. 



3 

- While the signage serves a need of the real estate community to provide information to 
visitors, maintaining the attractiveness of the Town creates lasting value and does more 
to attract residents and visitors. 

- The signs are too large and necessary information can be communicated in a different 
way. 

- The signs begin to dominate the landscape along the beach road. 

- The Town does not need to look manicured; however, the natural appearance is what 
makes the Town and the signs are not in keeping with the natural appearance. 

 
When considering this input, along with the Town’s vision statement, land use plan policies and 
the significant efforts the Town has made to improve the Town’s aesthetics, including aspects 
of the Town’s sign ordinance, the current regulation appears to be inconsistent with the values 
of the Town. Additionally, given the potential for additional signs as described above, it is staff’s 
opinion that this level of signage would have a significant impact on the appearance of the 
community. With that said, staff has recommended that the Planning Board consider 
modifications to the sign regulations pertaining to freestanding residential signage. The original 
recommendation provided by staff at the May 2015 meeting is as follows: 

 

 Allow one, six square foot “for rent” sign to be on the dwelling and a smaller 
freestanding sign to be place in the yard to communicate only the information necessary 
to identify the rental number and rental company name. Staff would recommend a size 
limit of 1.5 square feet for these signs. A height limit should also be established of no 
more than two feet above the adjacent grade. This option would only be recommended 
in instances where dwellings are more than 100 feet from the right-of-way.  

 
For the Planning Board’s reference, below is a summary of the requirements from other local 
communities related to “for rent” signs: 
 
 

Currituck Duck Southern Shores Kitty Hawk Kill Devil Hills 

One “for rent” 
sign; 2 square 
feet; max height 
20”; can be 
freestanding or 
attached 

One “for rent” 
sign; 3 square 
feet, attached to 
dwelling 

One “for rent” 
sign; 3.5 square 
feet, attached to 
dwelling 

One “for rent” 
sign; 6 square 
feet; must be 
attached to 
dwelling 

One “for rent” 
sign; 6 square 
feet plus frame;  
can be 
freestanding or 
attached; must 
be at least seven 
feet from lot 
lines 

 
The following menu of options has been included in the draft ordinance for discussion purposes 
at the upcoming meeting. Pictures are included below to illustrate the impact of these various 
options. Also, the ordinance has been modified to include a suggestion from the Planning Board 
Chairman based on information presented at the February meeting. 
 
 
 



4 

Area  
(sq. feet. and to include the frame) 

6 

3 

2 

1.5 

 

Height  
(inches to the sign top) 

24 

30 

  

Setback 

5 

None  
(as long as sight distance is 

maintained) 
 



5 

 

  

Original 6 sq. ft. sign and 2 sq. ft. sign 30” high Original 6 sq. ft. sign and 1.5 sq. ft. sign 24” high 

 
 

Original 6 sq. ft. sign with both sign options Perspective view of all sign options 

 

 

  

 

 



6 

 
Attachments: 
 

 Draft sign ordinance revisions 

 Minutes 5/4/15 Local Business Committee 

 Draft Minutes 1/28/16 Local Business Committee 

 Minutes 1/19/16 Planning Board 

 Draft Minutes 2/16/16 Planning Board 



 
 

MINUTES 
TOWN OF NAGS HEAD 

NAGS HEAD MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BOARD ROOM 
 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2016 
 

Joint Meeting with Planning Board/Property Managers re: rental sign regulations 
 
 
Board members present: Mayor Bob Edwards; Mayor Pro Tem Susie Walters;     
    Comr. Renée Cahoon; Comr. John Ratzenberger; and Comr. Marvin Demers 
 
Planning Board members   Mark Cornwell; Pogie Worsley; Clyde Futrell; Mike Siers; Jim Troutman 
present: 
 
Others present:    Town Manager Cliff Ogburn; Attorney John Leidy; Andy Garman; Kelly 

Wyatt; Kim Allen; Philip Ruckle; Kim Endre; Bob Oakes; Monica Thibodeau; 
Helen Cook; Lori Brooks; Lynsi Wilson; Jeri Wheeless; Stuart Pack; David 
Pergerson; Webb Fuller; Dorie Fuller; Stan White; Dan Hardy; Megan 
Vaughan; Willo Kelly; and Dep. Town Clerk Michelle Gray 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Edwards called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  He welcomed everyone to the joint meeting 
with the Planning Board and Rental Property Managers. 
 
The agenda summary sheet re: freestanding residential signage read in part as follows: 
 
“A Joint Workshop has been scheduled to discuss proposed amendments to the sign ordinance as it relates 
to residential freestanding signage.  The town currently allows a single-family dwelling to have a “for rent” 
sign attached to the structure for the purpose of identifying the rental house number and contact 
information for the property management company.  These signs may be up to six square feet in area.  In 
cases where structures are located more than 100 feet from the street right-of-way, the ordinance allows 
a freestanding sign to be placed in the yard.  There is no minimum height for these signs and no required 
setback.  Planning Staff has created an ordinance for discussion purposes based upon input received from 
the Local Business Committee and the Planning Board (minutes from meetings included as attachments).  
It is anticipated that the Planning Board will make a formal recommendation to the Board of 
Commissioners at their April 19, 2016 meeting.    
 
‘Planning Board Recommendation:  At its February 16, 2016 regular meeting the Planning Board voted 4 – 
1 to table the discussion while they continue to receive additional input from interested parties.” 
 
 



Nags Head Joint Board & Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

 

2 

 

FREESTANDING RESIDENTIAL SIGNAGE 
 
Dep. Town Manager Andy Garman provided an introduction and background information for discussion 
regarding freestanding residential signage.   Mr. Garman’s and Dep Planning Director/Zoning Administrator 
Kelly Wyatt’s memo of March 11, 2016 read in part as follows: 
 

“At its April 2015 meeting, the Planning Board began discussing an issue referred by the Board of 

Commissioners related to real estate rental signs. Board members had been receiving comments 
related to the negative impact on the appearance of the beach road caused by the proliferation of 
real estate rental signs. The Planning Board discussed this issue for several months and continues to 

evaluate recommendations from staff and from the Town’s Local Business Committee regarding the 
issue. In January of 2016, the Planning Board held a meeting with representatives from property 
management companies to receive input on these recommendations. At the conclusion of the 

discussion, the Planning Board directed staff to draft several options for modifying the regulations to 
include new sign area and height standards as well as a setback distance from the front property line. 
A draft of this ordinance was presented and discussed at the Planning Board’s February meeting. Staff 

also provided photos to compare what these options will look like relative to the existing signs. The 
February discussion concluded with the Planning Board tabling the item to receive more public input 
and direction from the Board of Commissioners. This memo contains a history of this issue as well as 

what was presented to the Planning Board at its February meeting. 
 
‘The Planning Board/Board of Commissioners are aware that the Local Business Committee made a 
recommendation last year on modifying the allowable size for these signs to 1.5 square feet with and 

a maximum height of 2 feet. The Local Business Committee met again in January of 2016 and 
received an update on the issue including an overview of the discussions from the January 2016 
Planning Board meeting with property managers. The Planning Board Chair suggested that the Local 

Business Committee provide a final recommendation on the issue considering the additional input that 
has been received. The Local Business Committee was shown visual representations of various sign 
options in order to assist with the discussion. After reviewing these visuals and discussing the issue at 

length, the Local Business Committee made a recommendation to modify the allowable sign area to 2 
square feet with a maximum height of 2 feet above grade to the top of the sign. The Local Business 
Committee also discussed what would be a reasonable timeframe to allow the signs to be modified to 

comply with new standards. A date of January 1, 2018 was suggested since this would provide two 
additional seasons for the signs. This was included in the Committee’s recommendation. 
 

‘Background      
 
As background, the Town currently has an ordinance that 

allows a single-family dwelling to have a “for rent” sign 
attached to the structure for the purpose of identifying the 
rental house number and the contact information for the 

property management company. The signs may be up to six 
square feet in area. In cases where structures are located 
more than 100 feet from the street right-of-way, the ordinance 

allows a freestanding sign to be placed in the yard. There is no 
minimum height for these signs and no required setback. This 
allowance has been provided to increase the visibility of rental 

signs where they would be difficult to see from the road.  
 



Nags Head Joint Board & Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

 

3 

 

These signs are primarily located on the east side of NC 12 and SR 1243 where oceanfront lots are 

deep and where houses are located further from the road. Along the Town’s 11 mile length, there are 
roughly 600 lots that are in either single-family or duplex uses that extend from the oceanfront to the 
road. In nearly all of these cases, the dwellings are located far enough from the road to qualify for a 

freestanding rental sign. An inventory of freestanding rental signs by company is provided below: 
 

Joe Lamb 56 

Village Realty 35 

Carolina Designs 34 

Outer Banks Blue 20 

Stan White  15 

Resort Realty 8 

Beach Realty 7 

Seaside Vacation 5 

Other 5 

Brindley Beach 2 

Carolina Dunes 1 

Total 188 

 
‘It should be noted that the Village at Nags Head does allow freestanding rental signs. With that said, 

the Town currently has less than half the number of rental signs that could be placed if a sign were to 
be placed at each eligible property.  
 

‘Staff has received input from a number of individuals since the Planning Board began discussing the 
issue. These individuals consisted of citizens, members of the local business committee, and local 
realtors. There was a clear theme that emerged from this input that the proliferation of these signs 

creates a negative image for the Town. Specific comments are paraphrased below: 
 

- It appears as if everything’s for sale. 

- The signs serve as additional advertising rather than wayfinding for guests. 

- The signs detract from the aesthetics of the Town. 

- While the signage serves a need of the real estate community to provide information to 
visitors, maintaining the attractiveness of the Town creates lasting value and does more to 
attract residents and visitors. 

- The signs are too large and necessary information can be communicated in a different way. 

- The signs begin to dominate the landscape along the beach road. 

- The Town does not need to look manicured; however, the natural appearance is what makes 
the Town and the signs are not in keeping with the natural appearance. 

 
‘When considering this input, along with the Town’s vision statement, land use plan policies and the 

significant efforts the Town has made to improve the Town’s aesthetics, including aspects of the 
Town’s sign ordinance, the current regulation appears to be inconsistent with the values of the Town. 
Additionally, given the potential for additional signs as described above, it is staff’s opinion that this 

level of signage would have a significant impact on the appearance of the community. With that said, 
staff has recommended that the Planning Board consider modifications to the sign regulations 
pertaining to freestanding residential signage. The original recommendation provided by staff at the 

May 2015 meeting is as follows: 
 



Nags Head Joint Board & Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

 

4 

 

 Allow one, six square foot “for rent” sign to be on the dwelling and a smaller freestanding sign 

to be place in the yard to communicate only the information necessary to identify the rental 
number and rental company name. Staff would recommend a size limit of 1.5 square feet for 

these signs. A height limit should also be established of no more than two feet above the 
adjacent grade. This option would only be recommended in instances where dwellings are 
more than 100 feet from the right-of-way.  

 
‘For the Planning Board’s reference, below is a summary of the requirements from other local 

communities related to “for rent” signs: 
 

Currituck Duck Southern Shores Kitty Hawk Kill Devil Hills 

One “for rent” 
sign; 2 square 

feet; max height 
20”; can be 
freestanding or 

attached 

One “for rent” 
sign; 3 square 

feet, attached to 
dwelling 

One “for rent” 
sign; 3.5 square 

feet, attached to 
dwelling 

One “for rent” 
sign; 6 square 

feet; must be 
attached to 
dwelling 

One “for rent” sign; 6 
square feet plus 

frame;  can be 
freestanding or 
attached; must be at 

least seven feet from 
lot lines 

 

‘The following menu of options has been included in the draft ordinance for discussion purposes at 
the upcoming meeting. Pictures are included below to illustrate the impact of these various options. 
Also, the ordinance has been modified to include a suggestion from the Planning Board Chairman 

based on information presented at the February meeting. 
 

Area  
(sq. feet. and to include the frame) 

6 

3 

2 

1.5 

 

Height  
(inches to the sign top) 

24 

30 

  

Setback 

5 

None  
(as long as sight distance is 

maintained) 



Nags Head Joint Board & Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

 

5 

 

  

  

Original 6 sq. ft. sign and 2 sq. ft. sign 30” high Original 6 sq. ft. sign and 1.5 sq. ft. sign 24” high 

 
 

Original 6 sq. ft. sign with both sign options Perspective view of all sign options 

 

 

  

 

 



Nags Head Joint Board & Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

 

6 

 

 
 
 
Public Comment – The following people spoke during public comment: 
 
Bob Oakes; Webb Fuller; Dan Hardy; Monica Thibodeau; Stuart Pack; Stan White; David Pergerson; Kim 
Endre; and Willo Kelly. 
 
The points below were mentioned during Public Comment: 
 

 Appreciative of the opportunity to meet and discuss 
 Vacation rentals are being singled out 
 Aesthetics is important 
 All signs need to be uniform 
 Willing to work with reasonable change 
 Vegetation can be an issue 
 Safety issue trying to locate rental property with smaller signs and at night 
 Willing to lower signs 
 EMS depend on the signs 
 Cost of signs is huge factor 
 All rely on tourism for a living 
 Nags Head is synonymous with the Outer Banks 
 Logos are familiar for repeat customers 

 
Mayor Edwards announced Public Comment closed at 6:15 p.m. as there was no one else present who 
wished to speak. 
 
 
Discussion - Board of Commissioners and Planning Board 
 
The Board of Commissioners and Planning Board members each provided their opinions on the issue.  
Each stated that aesthetics, size, location, number of, and orientation of the signs was important.  The 
following points were discussed: 
 

 Received complaints verbally and by email 
 Signs are getting larger 
 Need common ground 
 Use GPS to locate property 
 Signs in sight triangle 
 Town values – minimum streetlights and trees 
 Process could be transitional 
 Other rental companies have made it work; it can be done 
 Tourism is the lifeblood of Nags Head 

 
It was Board consensus to move forward, work together, and find a common ground for all.  Mayor 
Edwards suggested forming a sub-committee with the charge to agree on a size, height, location, number 
of and orientation of signs on a property.  The committee is to report back to the Planning Board in thirty 
(30) days. 
 
The following agreed to serve on the committee: Comr. John Ratzenberger; Andy Garman; Pogie Worsley; 
Mike Siers; Megan Vaughan; Dan Hardy; and David Pergerson. 



Nags Head Joint Board & Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

 

7 

 

 
Dep. Town Manager Garman will send an email to the committee members with the meeting date/time. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION:  Comr. Cahoon made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Walters which passed unanimously.  The time was 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
     ____________________________ 
     Michelle H. Gray, Dep. Town Clerk 
 
 
Date Approved: April 6, 2016___________ 
 
Mayor:   _______________________ 
   Robert C. Edwards 
 



1

�������	
��

�	�
 �������	
 ��

���� �����������	�����������������

�� � � �����	�!���"���# �	����!�$�%��&��'��(�	"�	!�)�*��+��	"�	���, &���	�&�����+-�
 !�

���, .����
 (.	+-�
 !�
 
 *��"%����, "
 ���+-�


/- 0�����# ����!�/��11�2"(�	�!�� �	 �/�	�3���

��(.�-� &4�5�"��6������"����(-�
 
 �����

Sign Subcommittee Members, 
 
Thank you for your time and contributions last week working on revisions to the town’s sign ordinance. I apologize for 
not providing this sooner however what follows is a summary of what we came up with. Please let me know if I have 
missed or characterized anything incorrectly. 
 
The subcommittee reviewed requirements for residential signage based on criteria for height, size, location and number 
of signs. It was agreed that the freestanding residential signage size limit should be reduced from six square feet to three 
square feet. The size limit will not include a frame constructed of 2’x4’ or 4’x4’ framing materials. Additionally, the 
height will be limited to 36 inches above grade measured to the top of the sign. The signs should be located in a manner 
which does not obstruct visibility from vehicles entering and exiting driveways. No specific setback requirement was 
established for these signs. For existing signs not meeting the aforementioned criteria, there will be an amortization 
date of January 1, 2019. Additionally, all new signs erected after the adopted date of the ordinance shall comply with 
these standards. It was reiterated that this signage allowance is only for properties where principal structures are 
located more than 100 feet from the front property line. In addition to the freestanding residential signage allowance, 
properties in single‐family use may also have a sign attached to the dwelling up to six square feet in area. It was noted 
that once the amortization takes effect, six square foot freestanding signs may be relocated to the wall of the building. 
 
The subcommittee also discussed non‐commercial identification signs erected by property owners. It was agreed that 
new ordinance should allow property owners to have up to one freestanding sign in this category not to exceed three 
square feet in area. Property owners may also have one wall mounted non‐commercial identification sign not to exceed 
six square feet in area. Currently, the ordinance allows one non‐commercial identification sign not to exceed two square 
feet in area and does not specify where it can be placed. 
 
The subcommittee agreed that the height limit for freestanding residential signs, including temporary signs, should not 
exceed 36 inches above grade measured to the top of the sign. This would include signs placed on properties actively 
listed for sale or under construction.  
 
At the conclusion of the discussion the committee reaffirmed that the ordinance would allow up to five permanent signs 
on properties in single‐family use (the four mentioned above and a one square foot home occupation sign for properties
with home occupations). This also does not include temporary signage as defined by the new ordinance.  
 
Subcommittee Members Present: 
 
Meghan Vaughan 
David Pergerson 
Dan Hardy 
Mike Siers 
Pogie Worsley 
John Ratzenberger 
 



2

Staff: 
 
Kelly Wyatt 
Andy Garman 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions regarding these notes or the process moving forward. Thank you! 
 
Andy Garman 
252‐449‐2006 
 
 
From: Andy Garman  
Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 11:16 AM 
To: Mike Siers; Pogie Worsely; John Ratzenberger; David.Pergerson@ResortRealty.com; dan@joelambjr.com 
Cc: Kelly Wyatt; Cliff Ogburn 
Subject: Re: Nags Head Sign Subcommittee 
 
Just a reminder for today's meeting... See you at 2 pm! 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Mar 21, 2016, at 2:00 PM, Andy Garman <andy.garman@nagsheadnc.gov> wrote: 

It appears everybody can attend on Thursday, May 31st at 2 pm so let’s schedule that time. We will meet 
at town hall in the upstairs conference room. Please let me know if you have any suggestions on 
information we should have ready for the meeting. We look forward to seeing you then. 
  
Andy Garman 
252‐449‐2006 
  
From: Andy Garman  
Sent: Friday, March 18, 2016 9:38 AM 
To: Mike Siers; Pogie Worsely; John Ratzenberger; 'David.Pergerson@ResortRealty.com'; 
'dan@joelambjr.com'; 'meganvaughan@embarqmail.com' 
Cc: Kelly Wyatt; Cliff Ogburn 
Subject: Nags Head Sign Subcommittee 
  
Good Morning, 
  
Thank you for your willingness to participate in the subcommittee to review the town’s sign regulations 
related to residential signage. Please use the attached poll to give us your availability for a meeting 
within the next two weeks. If you cannot make any of the suggested times, please respond with 
alternatives. I will send out the date, time and location when everyone has responded. We look forward 
to working with you! 
  
Andy Garman 
252‐449‐2006   
  
  
http://doodle.com/poll/bbp65g3b8p3dzi5c 
  
  



STAFF REPORT 

 

 
To: Planning Board         From:  Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director 
 
Application:  Vested Right/CUP/Site Plan Amendment  Date:  April 19, 2016    
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Applicant:  Chris DeWitt of VHB Engineering on behalf of the Dare County Tourism Board. 
 
Application Request:  The applicant is requesting the review of two items: 

 Vested Right/Conditional Use/Site Plan Amendment.  The previously approved site plan 
from 2014 has been modified to reflect a slightly different layout for the pavilion 
structure.  Additionally, a Vested Right Approval is being requested to allow a greater 
time frame for initial construction. 

 Town Code Section 48-165(f), Modification of parking requirements by Conditional Use 
Permit.  At the time of original site plan approval, the specifics of the pavilion had not 
been determined; it was likely to be an open-air structure.  Upon re-submittal, the 
pavilion is now proposed to be elevated above the Regulatory Flood Elevation and fully 
enclosed and conditioned.  With this change, a parking standard has now been imposed 
which exceeds the amount of parking previously approved on-site.  The applicant 
intends to apply an alternative parking standard to the site recognizing the unique 
nature of the proposed use and the way in which parking will be managed for events. A 
parking narrative has been included in your packet for your consideration.  
 

Purpose:  The scope of work for the original Conditional Use Permit consisted of the phased 
construction of a multiple event area, improved highway access, a multi-use shelter with 
restrooms, a welcome structure, play area, a boardwalk along the sound, a canoe/kayak launch, 
pedestrian trails, parking facilities, utilities infrastructure framework for events throughout the 
year and open space for passive recreation.   
 
At this time the Phase I improvements have been completed. As the Tourism Board moves 
forward into Phase II they are requesting an amendment to the originally approved site plan to 
accommodate a reorientation of the pavilion structure. In doing so, an alternative parking 
standard is also being requested.   
 
Property Location:  6800 S. Croatan Highway, Nags Head. 
 
Existing Land Use:  Event Site.   
 
Zoning Classification of Property: C2, General Commercial District and within the Commercial-
Outdoor Recreational Uses Overlay District. 
 
Zoning Classification of Surrounding Properties:  Properties to the north and south of this site 
are zoned C-2, General Commercial and also located within the Commercial-Outdoor Recreation 
Overlay District.  Properties to the east, immediately across S. Croatan Highway, are zoned C-2, 
General Commercial, however the Outdoor Recreation District does not extend across the 
highway. The sound is located to the west.  



Flood Hazard Zone of Property:  Eastern one half (approximately) portion of the lot is within the 
AE 9’ Flood Zone, the remainder of the western area of property is located within the AE 10’ 
Flood Zone.  The proposed pavilion is located within the AE 9’ Flood Zone; therefore the 
proposed structure must be elevated at or above the Regulatory Flood Elevation (RFE, which is 
the Base Flood Elevation plus 1 ft. freeboard) of 10’ msl.  The proposed first floor elevation of 
the pavilion is 10.25’ and therefore compliant.  
 
Land Use Plan Map/Policies: Land Use Plan classification for this property is Commercial and 
Park Open Space – Private. This proposal is consistent with this land use classification and 
additionally is consistent with stated land use policies. 
 
 

SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

 
Applicable Zoning Regulations: 
 

 Use Regulations:  “Designated Public Events Site” remains a Conditional Commercial-
Outdoor Recreational Use within the Commercial-Outdoor Recreational Uses Overlay 
District. Significant deviations from the originally approved plan require Board review 
and approval.  The reorientation of the pavilion and the request for vesting necessitate 
Board approval. 

 
 Lot Coverage-  Allowable lot coverage for this site is 55% however it may be increased 

to no more than 65% if open-face paving block, Turfstone™, or porous concrete as 
approved by the town engineer, is used in place of surfaces such as concrete or asphalt.  
Lot coverage within both the uplands and wetlands remain well within compliance.        

 

 Building Height- The maximum building height for the structure as proposed, based 
upon the roof pitch of 12:12, is 42 ft. measured from the Regulatory Flood Elevation. 
The height of the proposed structure is just over 34 ft.  Height is compliant however a 
height certificate will be required prior to issuance of Occupancy Permits to ensure full 
compliance.   

 
 Architecture Design Standards: A total of 125 architectural design points as required by 

Section 48-371 of the Town Code is necessary for the proposed structure.  A total of 
125 design points have been proposed through the use of porches, wood shingle siding 
and a pitched roof structure.  Therefore the architecture is compliant with the design 
guidelines.  

 

 Parking: At the time of original Conditional Use/Site Plan approval, there was no 
designated use of the pavilion structure necessitating a specific number of required 
parking spaces.  In the process of reorienting the pavilion, the Tourism Board now 
wishes to elevate the structure to the RFE and enclose and condition this space.  Staff 
feels this use now aligns with the parking standard for “Indoor Public Assembly or 
Indoor Event Space, not associated with a Hotel”.  This parking standard is as follows: 
One parking space per 55 square feet of customer area. Customer area includes seating 
area, lounges, decks, porches and patios, but excludes stairs, stair landings, 
handicapped ramps, restrooms and areas not open to the general public. Paved parking 
shall be provided at a ratio of one space per 55 square feet of customer area. The 



remaining required parking may be unpaved, provided that it is compacted, contoured 
for proper drainage, grassed and regularly maintained.  Applying this standard to an 
18,000 plus square foot area would require upward of 320 parking spaces.  Based upon 
the overall function and design of this site, Planning Staff is in agreement with the 
applicant that meeting this standard would be excessive.  As noted above, Town Code 
Section 48-165(f) does allow an applicant to request a modification to the parking 
requirement via conditional use approval (attached).  The applicant has provided a 
Parking Narrative for consideration that addresses many, if not all, of the 
questions/findings noted in Section 48-165(f)(3). 
 
In order for the modification of parking requirements to be granted the following must 
be demonstrated: 
(The proposed parking-) 
a. Will not result in increased traffic congestion or otherwise negatively impact existing 

traffic flow or pedestrian and vehicle safety. 
b. Will not create parking impacts for adjacent properties or within town rights-of-way. 
c. Will not be contrary to the objectives specified in the CAMA Land Use Plan. 
d. Is necessary to permit the reasonable use of the subject property; and 
e. Will not adversely impact adjacent property or the surrounding area. 
 
Staff would submit that, based upon the variety of events to be held at the Outer Banks 
Event Site, the current onsite parking combined with the overflow areas and the 
awareness of the need to acquire off-site parking and shuttling services for larger events 
is adequate.  Both vehicular and pedestrian traffic circulation and safety has been taken 
into account and designed for specifically. Additionally, bus drop off zones have been 
established to lessen impacts of traffic and congestion within the Towns rights-of-ways.  
This request is not contrary in any way to our current CAMA Land Use Plan and there 
are no anticipated adverse impacts to adjoining properties should this modification to 
the parking standard be approved. Staff submits that the applicant has adequately 
shown that all levels and intensities of events can be safely accommodated and parked 
either on-site or with coordinated efforts for off-site parking.    
 

 Buffering/Landscaping: Town Code Section 48-445(5) sets forth setback and buffering 
requirements for water and land dependent uses.  As a land dependent use the required 
buffer yards are as follows: 
 

 Front Yard requires a Buffer Yard A which is a vegetative buffer yard of a 
minimum width of ten feet and a minimum height of five feet when installed.  
Additionally, a required yard of not less than five feet shall separate parking and 
loading areas from all front, side and rear property lines.  The intent of the 
section has been met. 

 Side Yard requires a Buffer Yard C is a vegetative buffer yard that is no less than 
five feet in width and a minimum height of five feet when installed. Proposed 
buffering along the northern and southern boundary lines are compliant. 

 Rear Yard requires a Buffer Yard F which states no buffer is required if the lot 
abuts estuarine waters, provided that at least 50 percent of the land area within 
contiguous and/or adjacent 404 wetlands as defined by the Corps of Engineers 
or 50 percent of the land area waterward of the CAMA line, whichever land area 
is greater, is left in its natural condition. Rear yard buffering is compliant. 



 
Town Code Section 48-371(g)(2) additionally requires that the applicant demonstrate 
that a planting area of more than 15% of the lot’s total area has been provided 
throughout the site; 19% of the lot area has been planted and is therefore compliant 
with the code requirement.  

 

 Lighting & Signage: Lighting has been reviewed and approved by Planning Staff. No 
additional signage is being requested at this time.   

 
Water and Sewage Disposal: The Dare County Health Department has reviewed and issued an 
improvement permit with conditions noted for the requested development (permit attached).     
 
Stormwater Management:  See e-mail correspondence from David Ryan, Town Engineer and 
Project Coordinator, attached and dated 4/15/16.   
 
Traffic Circulation:  Traffic Circulation has been reviewed and approved by the Town Engineer. 
 
Fire:  Project will be required to comply with all applicable NC Fire Prevention Code 
requirements as part of building permit application review and issuance.  Please see e-mail 
correspondence from Deputy Fire Chief Shane Hite attached and dated 4/15/16. 
 
Public Works:  See e-mail correspondence from David Ryan, Town Engineer and Project 
Coordinator, attached and dated 4/15/16.  
 

ANALYSIS  

 
Planning Staff finds that the project is consistent with the proposed use and development 
standards. Additionally, Planning Staff finds that the existing improved and unimproved parking 
provided onsite is adequate for the type and style of events likely to be held at the Outer Banks 
Event Site.  In light of those events that exceed the onsite parking allocation, the applicant has 
clearly acknowledged the need to acquire off-site parking and shuttling services.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  

 
Staff recommends approval of the Vested Right/Conditional Use/Site Plan Amendment request 
conditional upon compliance with conditions set forth by the Town Engineer in his e-mail 
correspondence attached and dated 4/15/16 to include: 
 

1. BMP 8C – Recommend retainage of stormwater in area of elevated walkway sited in the 
SW corner of the site. 

2. The resilient wedge gate valve depicted on sheet C3.4 shall be “Waterous” resilient 
wedge type or approved equal. 

3. The RPZ “Hot Box” shall have dual access panels, (on opposite sides) 
4. A supplementary grading plan in the proximity of the “Hot Box” has been provided by 

the applicant increasing the RPZ pad elevation.  It is recommended that this information 
be reflected on the grading plan in advance of the Board of Commissioners meeting and 
as indicated by the applicant’s engineer. 

 



As well as all conditions set forth in Deputy Fire Chief, Shane Hite’s email correspondence dated 
4/15/16 and included in your packet. 
 
Attachments:  Vested Right/Conditional Use Application, Site Plan, Lighting and Architectural 
Drawings, Parking Narrative, Email Correspondence from David Ryan dated 4/15/16. 





























































 

 
Outer Banks Event Site – Parking Narrative  Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Outer Banks Event Site – Site Plan Review 
6800 South Croatan Hwy., Nags Head, North Carolina 27959 

 

Parking Narrative 
April 12, 2016 

 
Dare County Tourism Board is the applicant for the Soundside Event Site located on (3) lots totaling 
14.78 acres at 6800 South Croatan Highway in the Town of Nags Head.  The Site is located within a 
Commercial C-2 District, with conforming uses on both the north and south abutting properties.  The 
Roanoke Sound abuts the western property edge and US Route 158 on the eastern property edge.   
Access to the site is provided with a standard commercial entrance from US Route 158 for general 
public use and pedestrian drop-off and pick-up.  Additionally, a bus drop off zone has been created 
adjacent to US Route 158.  Finally, a second commercial entrance is used on the northern property 
edge to provide service and emergency vehicle access to the site and pavilion.  
 
During the initial Site Plan Approval process in 2014, the Town determined the open-air pavilion did 
not fall into any particular classification and therefore did not assign a required number of parking 
spaces, however, a total of 164 parking spaces were shown on the approved plan.  This amount of 
parking was intended to meet a range of parking demands for various events, while also minimizing 
the overall built-upon area. The 2016 revision calls for a conditioned pavilion to be built in accordance 
with state and local building code (i.e. base flood level + 1’).  The Town staff determined this use to be 
“Indoor public assembly or indoor event space, not associated with a hotel” which requires 1 parking 
space per 55 square feet of customer area.  Customer area includes seating area, lounges, decks, 
porches and patios, but excludes stairs, stair landings, handicapped ramps, restrooms, and areas not 
open to the general public.   
 
The Soundside Event Site and Pavilion as designed in the Master Plan will be host to a variety of event 
types throughout the calendar year.  The site and pavilion are intentionally designed with open areas 
that can be configured for each specific event type.  To help determine required parking for the site, 
this narrative outlines a range of three particular event types: (1) Trade Show, (2) Theatre / Lecture / 
Musical, (3) Festival.  Each of these types of events will have varying demands on the site, and the 
applicant explored each of these projected uses to further determine the most appropriate size of the 
parking areas.   
 
The (3) event types break down as follows: 
 

(1) Trade Show:  These events will be the most frequent use as the theme can vary greatly from 
car shows, boat shows, home and garden expo, craft show, holiday show, wedding expo, etc.  
– With any of these themes, a large percentage of the interior building space will in fact not 
be used by the general public but instead be fixed display areas.  Just as when calculating the 
net “customer service area” for a restaurant, the application prepared the attached graphic 
that shows a net customer space of 7,713 sf when the pavilion is arranged for a Trade Show 



 

 
Outer Banks Event Site – Parking Narrative  Page 2 of 2 

 

event.  Using the 1 space per 55 SF of customer area formula, it is determined a total of 140 
parking spaces is required (with 70% or 98 spaces to be paved). The application exceeds this 
total by proposing 113 paved spaces and 51 grass parking spaces.  The breakdown for these 
spaces are shown on the parking chart on the Title Sheet.   

 
(2) Theatre / Lecture / Musical: An alternative use of the building would be a performance style 

event, which could have higher parking demands than a trade show event.    When the 
pavilion is used for these types of events, the Town Ordinance formula of 1 space per (4) 
seats was used to determine a required 198 parking spaces based of a total of 792 seats as 
shown on the attached plan with a seating chart.  In the initial master plan, the northern 
ellipse lawn was shown as an overflow parking area which would accommodate the additional 
34 required spaces.     

 
(3) Festival: A primary use of the event site is to host the Outer Banks Seafood Festival, an event 

promoting, honoring, and celebrating the coastal seafood heritage and community of the 
Outer Banks.  For this event and similar events in scale, a formal application/contract is 
required by the applicant, which outlines the particular strategy for off-site parking and the 
necessary coordination and management with Town staff and emergency service personnel. 

 



M
TG
.
O
FF
.

MW

EL
EC
.

SP
.

J.

MW VE
ST
IB
U
LE

JA
N.

11
'-6

"x
9'

-8
"

11
'-6

"x
9'

-8
"

F

7,
71

3 
SF

V
E

N
D

O
R

 L
O

A
D

IN
G

/D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
/S

TO
R

A
G

E
/B

R
E

A
K

 A
R

E
A

C
ar

 a
nd

 B
oa

t S
ho

w
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
n

Ty
pi

ca
l 

10
'x

10
'

Tr
ad

e 
S

ho
w

B
oo

th
s



M
TG

.
O

FF
.

MW

EL
EC

.
SP

.
J.

MW VE
ST

IB
U

LE

JA
N.

11
'-6

"x
9'

-8
"

11
'-6

"x
9'

-8
"

F

18

22

STAGE













Latest Issue:

Date Issued:

Issued for:

V
H

B
 P

ro
je

ct
 N

o.

Is
su

ed
 fo

r: 

Subdivision: Forbes Commercial Lots

Town Of Nags Head

Nags Head NC, 27959

Dare County Tourism Board 

Owner:

Lot: 3 - DB 1725  PG 0455

Feet0 1000 2000

Site Location Map

Applicant:

PO. Box 99
5401 Croatan Hwy.

Manteo NC, 27954
One Visitors Circle  

Site Plans
Site Plan Review

August 18, 2014

April 12, 2016

33
72

7.
02

N
ag

s H
ea

d,
 N

or
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 Property Owners

Outer Banks Event Site
6800 South Croatan Hwy.
Nags Head, North Carolina, 27959

Williamsburg, Virginia 23185
757.220.0500 • FAX 757.220.8544

351 McLaws Circle, Suite 3

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

SITE

Charter Communications: 

1-888-438-2427
Nags Head, NC 27959
2400 S. Virginia Dare Trail

Telephone, Internet Services:

402 Budleigh Street
Manteo, NC 27954
(252) 475-1219 · 1-800-775-3441

Century Link:

Electricity:

5300 The Woods Road
Kitty Hawk, NC 27949
1-866-366-4357 · 1-888-627-3000

Cable TV, Internet Services:

Dominion North Carolina Power: Dare County Water Dept.: 

(252) 475-5990
Kill Devil Hills NC, 27948 
600 Mustian Street

Sewer:

obtained from the Environmental Health Division
of the Dare County Health Department
(252) 475-5089

Permits for installing new septic fields have been 

Water:

Resource List

Lot: 1 - DB 1784  PG 0470
Lot: 2 - DB 1784  PG 0470
Zoning: C-2  Commercial Outdoor Recreational Use Overlay Dist. 
Present Use: Event Site
Existing Nonconformites: Parking, Sediment Control Buffers
Abutting Property Zoning: C-2  
Abutting Property Use: Restaurant & Recreation  

Location & Zoning Information

North Carolina License #C-3705

252-441-5580 · Fax 252-473-5777

252-473-2138 · Fax 252-473-5777

Parking Summary Chart

Description
Size Spaces

Required Provided Required Provided

*Septic field to be installed in Phase II

Proposed Construction:

Construction
Building Hight
No. Stories
Floor Area

Pavilion, Office,
& Restrooms Bldg.

Steel
34'
1
13,623 sf.

Tensile Structure:
Fabric & Steel
14.5'
1
1,372 sf.

Restroom:
Wood Frame
35'
1
800 sf.

Site Area
To Shoreline:

Lot  1
162,357 SF.±
3.73 AC.±

Lot  2
74,034 SF.±
1.70 AC.±

Lot  3
407,208 SF.±
9.35 AC.±

Total
643,599 SF.±
14.78 AC.±

Uplands: 138,145 SF.±
3.17 AC.±

55,173 SF.±
1.27 AC.±

258,458 SF.±
5.93 AC.±

451,776 SF.±
10.37 AC.±

Wetlands: 24,590 SF.±
0.56 AC.±

18,860 SF.±
0.43 AC.±

148,750 SF.±
3.41 AC.±

192,200 SF.±
4.41 AC.±

Existing
Improvements:

35,564 SF.±
22%

24,325 SF.±
33%

2,000 SF.±
0%

61,889 SF.±
10%

Proposed:
Land Disturbance: 10.4 AC.
Impervious Coverage: 2.76 AC.
BUA: 2.76 AC. =19%

Existing Future

  Sheet Index

No.
Drawing Title

Latest Issue

0.1

1.1

Drainage Area Map

No.
Drawing Title

Latest Issue

S1

Reference Drawings

Existing Conditions

DA

Grading and Drainage Plan2.1

BMP Profile2.3

Legend and General Notes

Overall Layout Plan1.0

C3.1 - C3.2 Utility Plans

Layout and Materials Plan 

Site Details3.2

Planting PlanL1.1-L1.2

Planting Notes and DetailsL1.3

Irrigation L1.4

LC-1 - LC-2 Site Lighting Calculation Plans

A201 Nags Head Elevation Submittal

1.2 Layout and Materials Plan 

Grading and Drainage Plan2.2

3.1 Site Details

C1.1 - C1.2 Erosion Control Plan & Details

C3.4 Waterline Details



General 

Abbreviations

Prop.Exist.

Utility

Exist. Prop.

Matchline

Legend Notes:

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Legend and

General Notes

1

DSL



F
F

E
 
=

 
1

0
.
2

5

SHEETS:

1.2 & 2.2

SHEETS:

1.1 & 2.1

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

Overall Layout

DSL

Proposed Grading Revision 04/12/2016 RMW2



R
E

S
T

R
O

O
M

F
F

E
 
=

 
1

0
.
2

5

U
S 

H
W

Y
 1

58
15

0'
 R

/W

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

MATCH LINE SHEET 1.2

 TYPICAL TWO-SIDED SIGN WALL

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"SECTION

SOUTH ELEVATION OF SIGN WALL

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"SECTION

NORTH ELEVATION OF SIGN WALL LEFT JUSTIFIED

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"SECTION

Layout and Materials

DSL

Existing LegendProposed Legend

Notes:

Accessible Curb Ramp (ACR) Type 'D'
N.T.S.

Notes:

Accessible Curb Ramp (ACR) Type 'J'
N.T.S.

Stop Sign & Traffic Flow Arrows Added 04/12/2016 RMW2



PAVILION

FFE = 10.25

PAVILION EXPANSION

FFE = 10.25

U
S 

H
W

Y
 1

58
15

0'
 R

/W

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

MATCH LINE SHEET 1.1

Existing Legend

Layout and Materials

DSL

Proposed Legend

Dumpster Pad Size 04/12/2016 RMW2



PAVILION
FFE = 10.25

PAVILION EXPANSION
FFE = 10.25

R
ES

TR
O

O
M

F
F

E
 
=

 
1

0
.
2

5

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

Drainage Area Map

Legend

Proposed Grading Revision 04/12/2016 RMW2



R
ES

TR
O

O
M

F
F

E
 
=

 
1

0
.
2

5

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

MATCH LINE SHEET 2.2

Grading and

Drainage Plan

DSL

Existing Legend

Proposed Legend



PAVILION
FFE = 10.25

PAVILION EXPANSION
FFE = 10.25

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

MATCH LINE SHEET 2.1

Grading and

Drainage Plan

DSL

Existing Legend

Proposed Legend

Proposed Grading Revision 04/12/2016 RMW2



E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s

Station

Station

Alignment - (1)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

10

0+00 1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 5+005+04

PAVILION EXPANSION

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

BMP Profile

Proposed Grading Revision 04/12/2016 RMW2



Cast-In- Place Concrete Steps

Step Nosing Detail

Intermediate Handrail Post  And Support

Cast-In-Place Cheek Wall Detail

36" TYPICAL SIGN WALL

SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"SECTION

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

RDryset Brick Pavers on Stonedust Bed

Medium Duty Asphalt Paving

Section Through Right Turn Lane

Section Through Turn Around Circles

Heavy Duty Asphalt Paving

Site Details

DSL

Rope & Post Fence Detail



of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Site Details

DSL



R
ES

TR
O

O
M

F
F

E
 
=

 
1

0
.
2

5

JC

2

JC

1

JC

1

JC

2

JC

1

JC

1

IA

2

JV

2

PB

1

QF

1

PT

3

PT

3

JV

2

QV

1

IA

2

25

PV

41

PD

2

QV

2

QV

68

PV

558 sf

CD

3,635 sf

CD

1,425 sf

CD

309 sf

CD

1

JC

1

QV

1

QV

54,559 sf

CD

BH

2

IF

3

MC

3

3

PT

1

QV

3

JV

2

JC

3

PT

1

QF

3

JC

1

QV

1

PB

2

IA

2

JV

MC

5

1

PT

2

JV

1

PT

1

QV

MC

3

35

CA

24

CA

47

IV

3

MC

4

MC

4

MC

4

MC

9

MC

5

BH

2

MC

5

MC

CD

3,479 sf

QV

4

1

QV

PD

118

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Planting Plan

ST CB

6030150

NOTE:
ALL TURF IS TO BE YUKON, LATITUDE 36, NORTHBRIDGE, TIFWAY, OR PREMIER.

COMMON NAME

BOTANICAL NAME

SOWING DATES: 5/15-7/15

RATE: 2 LBS/1000 SF

PURITY

%

RATE

% BY

DESCRIPTION

PERMANENT SEEDING SCHEDULE

Temporary Seeding Specifications
N.T.S.

TS

TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT CAL SIZE REMARKS

IA 17 Ilex x attenuata `East Palatka` East Palatka Holly 30 gal 5`-6` HT.

JC 24 Juniperus chinensis `Torulosa` Hollywood Juniper 30 gal 6`-8` HT.

JV 16 Juniperus virginiana `Burkii` Burk Red Cedar 15 gal 5`-6` HT.

PB 8 Persea borbonia Redbay 10 gal 3`-4` HT.

PT 34 Pinus taeda Loblolly Pine 10 gal 1"Cal

QF 4 Quercus falcata Southern Red Oak 30 gal 1.5"Cal

QV2 7 Quercus virginiana Southern Live Oak 10 gal 1"Cal

QV 24 Quercus virginiana Southern Live Oak 100 gal 3"Cal

TD2 5 Taxodium distichum Bald Cypress 10 gal 1"Cal

TD 8 Taxodium distichum Bald Cypress 30 gal 2"Cal

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE FIELD2 FIELD3 REMARKS

BH 38 Baccharis halimifolia Salt Bush 3 gal

CO 20 Cephalanthus occidentalis Buttonbush 3 gal

CA 160 Clethra alnifolia Summersweet Clethra 3 gal

IG 21 Ilex glabra Inkberry Holly 3 gal

IV 47 Ilex vomitoria `Nana` Dwarf Yaupon 3 gal

IF 17 Iva frutescens Marsh Elder 3 gal

MC 101 Myrica cerifera Wax Myrtle 7 gal

RS 6 Rhaphiolepis indica `Snow White` Snow White Indian Hawthorn 3 gal

GROUND COVERS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT FIELD2 FIELD3 SPACING REMARKS

DC 196 Delosperma cooperi Purple Ice Plant 1 gal 24" o.c.

IB 165 Iris virginica Blue Flag Iris 2" Plug 24" o.c.

JB 193 Juniperus conferta `Blue Pacific` Blue Pacific Juniper 3 gal 24" o.c.

MR 102 Mimulus ringens Monkeyflower 2" Plug 24" o.c.

MM 735 Muhlenbergia capillaris Pink Muhly 1 gal 36" o.c.

PD 763 Panicum amarum `Dewey Blue` Bitter Panic Grass 1 gal 36" o.c.

PV 1,386 Panicum virgatum `Cheyenne Sky` Switch Grass 1 gal 36" o.c.

PA 541 Perovskia atriplicifolia `Little Spire` TM Little Spire Russian Sage 1 gal 24" o.c.

SA 25 Sagittaria latifolia Lance-Leafed Arrowhead 2" Plug 24" o.c.

SC 195 Santolina chamaecyparissus Lavender Cotton 1 gal 24" o.c.

SL 116 Saururus cernuus Lizard`s Tail 2" Plug 24" o.c.

SP 2,609 Spartina patens Salt Meadow Cord Grass 2" Plug 18" o.c.

SOD/SEED QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT FIELD2 FIELD3 SPACING REMARKS

CD 93,654 sf Cynodon dactylon `Latitude 36` Bermuda Grass sod

PLANT SCHEDULE



PAVILION
FFE = 10.25

PAVILION EXPANSION
FFE = 10.25

PT

3

JC

1

TD2

2

IA

1

PB

1

IB

61

SP

594

PD

52

PV

78

QV

2

PD

137

CD

8,296 sf

TD

1

CD

1,025 sf

BH

11

MC

10

IF

5

CO

4

1

JC

3

PT

1

IA

2

QV2

1

PB

1

QV

1

TD2

2

JV

4

PT

1

IA

2

QV2

1

QV2

1

IA

1

TD2

1

QF

2

PT

1

QV

39

MR

31

SL

2

PB

37

SL

63

MR

46

PV

25

SA

26

SL

104

IB

56

MM

80

PD

1

PB

3

PT

1

TD

3

JC

2

QV2

1

QF

1

PT

1

PB

1

QV

4

PT

3

IA

5

JC

193

JB

62

PD

3

IA

145

MM

277

PV

1,024 sf

CD

22

SL

6

TD

47

DC

41

PD

2,240 sf

CD

9,191 sf

CD

22

DC

14

MM

635 sf

CD

4,288 sf

CD

46

MM

BH

5

1

TD2

3

JV

617 sf

CD

1,219 sf

CD

1

IA

641 sf

CD

512 sf

CD

BH

4

35

DC

60

DC

3

BH

3

MC

3

CO

6

MC

4

MC

8

BH

9

CO

8

CA

9

MC

12

CA

8

IG

4

MC

12

CA

3

MC

45

CA

4

CO

6

IG

18

CA

7

IG

4

IF

6

RS

11

MC

5

IF

7

MC

99

SC

32

DC

96

SC

QV

3

SP

203

SP

1,600

SP

212

PV

381

271

PV
199

MM

MM

112

PD

118

240

PV

MM

163

232

PD

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Revised Pavilion Design
03/24/2016

RMW

1

Planting Plan

ST CB

0 15 30 60

Proposed Grading & Dumpster Pad Revision 04/12/2016 RMW2



of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

Planting Notes

and Details

ST CB

Below-Grade Tree Stabilizing System Detail
N.T.S.

Shovel Cut Edging Detail
N.T.S.

Curb-Bed Edging Detail
N.T.S.

Tree Planting
N.T.S.

Plan

Notes:

Shrub Bed Planting
N.T.S.

Landscape Notes
1. ALL PROPOSED PLANTING LOCATIONS SHALL BE STAKED AS SHOWN ON

THE PLANS FOR FIELD REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATIONS OF ALL BELOW GRADE AND

ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES AND NOTIFY OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE OF

CONFLICTS.

3. NO PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE INSTALLED UNTIL ALL GRADING AND

CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN THE IMMEDIATE AREA.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY

CONFLICT.

4. A 3-INCH DEEP MULCH PER SPECIFICATION SHALL BE INSTALLED

UNDER ALL TREES AND SHRUBS, AND IN ALL PLANTING BEDS, UNLESS

OTHERWISE INDICATED ON THE PLANS, OR AS DIRECTED BY OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE.

5. ALL TREES SHALL BE BALLED AND BURLAPPED, UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED IN THE DRAWINGS OR SPECIFICATION, OR APPROVED BY THE

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

6. FINAL QUANTITY FOR EACH PLANT TYPE SHALL BE AS GRAPHICALLY

SHOWN ON THE PLAN. THIS NUMBER SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE IN

CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCY BETWEEN QUANTITIES SHOWN ON THE

PLANT LIST AND ON THE PLAN.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY

DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE NUMBER OF PLANTS SHOWN ON  THE

PLANT LIST AND PLANT LABELS PRIOR TO BIDDING.

7. ANY PROPOSED PLANT SUBSTITUTIONS MUST BE REVIEWED BY

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND APPROVED IN WRITING BY THE OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE.

8. ALL PLANT MATERIALS INSTALLED SHALL MEET THE SPECIFICATIONS

OF THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK" BY THE

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN AND CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS.

9. ALL PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR ONE YEAR

FOLLOWING DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

10. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT OTHERWISE NOTED ON CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS SHALL BE MULCHED OR SEEDED AS DIRECTED BY

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

11. THIS PLAN IS INTENDED FOR PLANTING PURPOSES. REFER TO SITE /

CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR ALL OTHER SITE CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION.

Plant Maintenance Notes
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE COMPLETE MAINTENANCE OF THE

LAWNS AND PLANTINGS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL MATERIALS, LABOR, AND

EQUIPMENT FOR THE COMPLETE LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE WORK.

WATER SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

3. WATERING SHALL BE REQUIRED DURING THE GROWING SEASON,

WHEN NATURAL RAINFALL IS BELOW ONE INCH PER WEEK.

4. WATER SHALL BE APPLIED IN SUFFICIENT QUANTITY TO THOROUGHLY

SATURATE THE SOIL IN THE ROOT ZONE OF EACH PLANT.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE DEAD OR DYING PLANTS AT THE END

OF THE  ONE YEAR GUARANTEE PERIOD. CONTRACTOR SHALL TURN

OVER MAINTENANCE TO THE FACILITY MAINTENANCE STAFF AT THAT

TIME.



of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

Irrigation Performance

Specifications

ST CB

IRRIGATION SPRAY SHALL NOT COME IN

CONTACT WITH TRUNKS OF TREES (TYP).

ZONE 1

BEDDING

AREA

ZONE 2 TURF AREA

3' MIN.

LOCATE VALVE BOXES WITHIN PLANTING

BEDS WHEREVER POSSIBLE

HEAD-TO-HEAD

 COVERAGE, TYP.



of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

 

33727.02

N

O

R

T

H

 
 
C

A

R

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

SS

I
O

N

A

L

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

 

 
F

.
 
 CA

T

E

R

I

N

O

,

 
J

R
.

E

N

G

I N

E

E

R

Existing Conditions



PAVILION

FFE = 10.25

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

X

33727.02

Williamsburg, Virginia 23185
757.220.0500 • FAX 757.220.8544

351 McLaws Circle, Suite 3

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

www.AlbemarleAssociates.com

Fax:     (252) 441-0965

Phone: (252) 441-2113

Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948

P.O. Box 3989

115 West Saint Clair St.

Certificate of Licensure No. C-1027

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

X

33727.02

Williamsburg, Virginia 23185
757.220.0500 • FAX 757.220.8544

351 McLaws Circle, Suite 3

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

www.AlbemarleAssociates.com

Fax:     (252) 441-0965

Phone: (252) 441-2113

Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948

P.O. Box 3989

115 West Saint Clair St.

Certificate of Licensure No. C-1027

SEAL
16759

NO

RTH  CA ROLINA

PR

OFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

J O
H N  M .  D E L U C IA

,  P
E









SEAL
16759

NO

RTH  CA ROLINA

PR

OFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

J O
HN  M .  D E L U C IA

,  P
E

Erosion Control Plan

1

JMD JMD

Erosion Control

Notes and Details

1

JMD JMD

K
:
\
A
c
t
i
v
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
 
-
 
D
a
r
e
 
T
o
u
r
i
s
m
 
B
o
a
r
d
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
-
 
V
H
B
\
C
a
d
d
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
E
&
S
.
d
w
g
,
 
3
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
6
 
3
:
3
2
:
2
0
 
P
M



of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

X

33727.02

Williamsburg, Virginia 23185
757.220.0500 • FAX 757.220.8544

351 McLaws Circle, Suite 3

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

www.AlbemarleAssociates.com

Fax:     (252) 441-0965

Phone: (252) 441-2113

Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948

P.O. Box 3989

115 West Saint Clair St.

Certificate of Licensure No. C-1027









SEAL
16759

NO

RTH  CA ROLINA

PR

OFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

J O
H N  M .  D E L U C IA

,  P
E

Erosion Control

Notes and Details

1

JMD JMD

K
:
\
A
c
t
i
v
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
 
-
 
D
a
r
e
 
T
o
u
r
i
s
m
 
B
o
a
r
d
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
-
 
V
H
B
\
C
a
d
d
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
E
&
S
.
d
w
g
,
 
4
/
1
1
/
2
0
1
6
 
3
:
0
8
:
2
3
 
P
M



SEAL
16759

NO

RTH  CA ROLINA

PR

OFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

J O
H N  M .  D E L U C IA

,  P
E

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

X

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

www.AlbemarleAssociates.com

Fax:     (252) 441-0965

Phone: (252) 441-2113

Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948

P.O. Box 3989

115 West Saint Clair St.

Certificate of Licensure No. C-1027

Utility Plans

1

JMD JMD

MATCH LINE SHEET 3.2

K
:
\
A
c
t
i
v
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
 
-
 
D
a
r
e
 
T
o
u
r
i
s
m
 
B
o
a
r
d
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
-
 
V
H
B
\
C
a
d
d
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
U
T
I
L
I
T
Y
.
d
w
g
,
 
3
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
6
 
3
:
1
6
:
5
4
 
P
M



PAVILION

FFE = 10.25

SEAL
16759

NO

RTH  CA ROLINA

PR

OFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

J O
H N  M .  D E L U C IA

,  P
E

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

X

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

www.AlbemarleAssociates.com

Fax:     (252) 441-0965

Phone: (252) 441-2113

Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948

P.O. Box 3989

115 West Saint Clair St.

Certificate of Licensure No. C-1027

Utility Plans

1

JMD JMD

MATCH LINE SHEET 3.1

K
:
\
A
c
t
i
v
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
 
-
 
D
a
r
e
 
T
o
u
r
i
s
m
 
B
o
a
r
d
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
-
 
V
H
B
\
C
a
d
d
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
U
T
I
L
I
T
Y
.
d
w
g
,
 
3
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
6
 
3
:
1
6
:
3
6
 
P
M



of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

v
h

b
.
c
o

m

Date

Outer Banks Event Site

6800 South Croatan Hwy.

Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

X

33727.02

351 McLaws Circle

Suite 3

Williamsburg, VA 23185

757.220.0500

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.

North Carolina License #C-3705

www.AlbemarleAssociates.com

Fax:     (252) 441-0965

Phone: (252) 441-2113

Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948

P.O. Box 3989

115 West Saint Clair St.

Certificate of Licensure No. C-1027

SEAL
16759

NO

RTH  CA ROLINA

PR

OFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

J O
H N  M .  D E L U C IA

,  P
E

Utility Plans

Waterline Details

1

JMD JMD

K
:
\
A
c
t
i
v
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
 
-
 
D
a
r
e
 
T
o
u
r
i
s
m
 
B
o
a
r
d
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
-
 
V
H
B
\
C
a
d
d
 
F
i
l
e
s
\
0
1
4
1
1
P
 
U
T
I
L
I
T
Y
.
d
w
g
,
 
4
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6
 
1
:
2
2
:
2
1
 
P
M







12

12

34
' -

 0
 3

/4
"

3.75

12

A201

4

A201 6 A2013

A201

5

79' - 0"

11
' -

 0
"

10
2'

 - 
0"

11
' -

 0
"

21
' -

 1
0"EXHIBIT /

CONFERENCE

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

MTG. OFF.

M

W

ELEC.SP.J.

F

-

-2

A201

OD OD

SD

ODOD

CALC. OCC.1,078

Nags Head Design Points Tabulation Form

125

FIRST FLOOR PORCHES - p1/b1 x 150 =
p1 = PERIMETER OF FIRST FLOOR WITH PORCH
b1 = PERIMETER OF FIRST FLOOR
SECOND FLOOR PORCHES - p2/b2 x 75=
p2 = PERIMETER OF SECOND FLOOR WITH PORCH
b2 = PERIMETER OF SECOND FLOOR

HIP OR GABLE - n x 5
SHED - n(10) + L =
n = NO. OF DORMERS
L = LINEAR FT. PAST 12'

10

25

BUMP OUTS - f x 10
f= FACADE WITH REQUIRED BUMP OUTS
COMBINATION BASE FORM

WOOD SHINGLES = 25
SIMULATED WOOD SHINGLES = 12

WINDOWS = 20
WORKABLE SHUTTERS = 15
EXPOSED RAFTER TAILS = 5
BEAUTY BANDS = 5
COLUMN TRIM = 5
GABLE BRACKET = 5
BUILT-IN RAILING BENCHES = 5

NUMBER OF SPACES ABOVE REQUIRED PARKING (N) = n x 20

180'/362' x 150 75

25

DESIGN ELEMENT

PORCHES

DORMERS

ROOFS

BUILDING FORM

MISC. DETAILS

PARKING

MINIMUM REQUIRED POINT TOTAL FOR DWELLING CATEGORY
TWO (2)AND DWELLING CATEGORY THREE (3)

COASTAL
WATCH TOWER

SIDING MATERIALS

TOTAL

POINTSFORMULA/NO. OF POINTS POSSIBLE

25

MAX.

8' - 0"

MAX.

8' - 0"

1'
 - 

0"

5'
 - 

0"

CLCL CL

P.T. 1x8 CAP

P.T. 2x6 TOP  & BOT. RAILS

P.T. 2x6 STUDS 24"O.C. MAX.

P.T. 6x6 POST W/ 6' MIN.
EMBEDMENT

P.T. 1/2" P.W. SHEATHING

SHAKE SIDING

51211

AROL
IN

CHT
ON AR

H E D,
N

SG
A

A

N C

D
E
R
E
T

SI
G
E

R

AR
CH

IT TEC URAL
CO

R
P
O
R
A
IO
N

T

ANETSAK
&

C
A
H
O
O
N

RCH

IT
E
C
T
S
,
P.C

.

DERETSI
GE

R

ARCHIT

T

AROL
IN

CHT
ON

EC

AR

5413

HE D,
N

SG
A

A

N C

NIMA

N
E

B

B. CAH

O
O
N

J

cahoon kasten
118 West Woodhill Drive
Nags Head, North Carolina 27959

252.441.0271 252.441.8724
office@obxarchitects.com

+

P. F.
E.

A     R     C     H     I     T     E     C     T     S

Drawing Title

Revised Architectural Design 03/24/2016                  BBC1

vh
b.

co
m

VHB Engineering NC, P.C.
North Carolina License #C-3705

Outer Banks Event Site
6800 South Croatan Hwy.
Nags Head, North Carolina

Site Plan Review

For Approval

August 18, 2014

15058

of

Project Number

Sheet

Drawing Number

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

Date

Nags Head
Elevation
Submittal

A201

351 McLaws Circle
Suite 3
Williamsburg, VA 23185
757.220.0500

03/22/16

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 East Elevation PH1

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 North Elevation PH1

 1/8" = 1'-0"6 West Elevation PH1

 1/8" = 1'-0"5 South Elevation PH1

 1/16" = 1'-0"1 First Floor Plan

Window Area Schedule

Elevation Wall Area
Window

Area
Window

Percentage

East Elevation (Front) 1530 SF 178 SF 11.63
North Elevation (Right Side) 1276 SF 251 SF 19.67
South Elevation (Left Side) 1276 SF 355 SF 27.82
West Elevation (Rear Elevation) 1530 SF 388 SF 25.36

2 Perspective

TYP.

OPEN FRAMEWORK
(NO GLASS)

METAL ROOFING

WOOD SHAKE SIDING

 1/4" = 1'-0"7 Typical Screen Wall Detail



P:\33727.02\cad\A-prjdwg\C3D Phase 2 & 3 Files\C3D PR Surface P3 & P3.dwg

4/13/2016

1Revised Grading 

Around The 

Reduced Pressure Detector



PAVILION

FFE = 10.25

PAVILION EXPANSION

FFE = 10.25

R
E

S
T

R
O

O
M

F
F

E
 
=

 
1

0
.
2

5

U
S 

H
W

Y
 1

58
15

0'
 R

/W



1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Planning Board  

FROM: Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director and Zoning Administrator 
Andy Garman, Deputy Town Manager 

DATE: April 15, 2016 

SUBJECT: Discussion of Cottage Courts as permissible uses within the Town. 
 
 
Last year the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners reviewed regulations pertaining to 
cottage courts. For the past 30 years, cottage courts have been considered a nonconforming 
use by the town’s ordinance. Therefore, no expansions to these properties have been allowed 
except for general maintenance and repairs. Modifications to the ordinance last year now allow 
staff and the Board of Commissioners to approve repairs, additions and expansions to existing 
cottage court properties. However, cottage courts were not removed as a nonconforming use. 
Consequently, it is still not possible to develop a new cottage court within the town except as 
allowed in the cluster housing provisions which were approved in the C-2 zoning district in late 
2014. In these cases, only existing nonconforming lots of record may be recombined to create a 
cluster housing development and this is allowed under very specific circumstances.  
 
During the course of working on revisions to the town’s land use plan and zoning ordinance 
(Focus Nags Head), there has been much discussion about diversity of accommodations. One 
main goal expressed is to improve the variety of accommodations within the town, including 
transient uses such as hotels and cottage courts, to provide more opportunities for short-stay 
visitors. While the town has made a number of changes to the ordinance over the years to 
promote hotel development, it has been noted by the Focus Advisory Committee that cottage 
courts may represent a more viable alternative to hotels from a development and from a land 
use compatibility standpoint. As the town continues to experience the loss of older hotels and 
motels, there is a renewed sense of urgency to consider the expansion of the cottage court as a 
viable use of property.  
 
Based on input from the Advisory Committee and the Board of Commissioners, staff would like 
to suggest that the Planning Board initiate a discussion to broaden the scope of where and how 
cottage courts might be developed within the town. At the upcoming meeting, staff will be 
prepared to discuss the ideas coming out of the Focus Advisory Committee regarding the 
expansion of cottage courts. If the Planning Board agrees to this suggested course of action, 
staff will prepare information to be reviewed at the May Planning Board meeting. 
 


	April 2016 Agenda
	March 16 2016 Draft Minutes ALG
	Sign Memo
	Sign Memo 031616 joint workshop
	SuggestedSignOrdinanceModifications

	OB Event Site CUP - draft KW
	OB Event Site VestedCUP Application docs
	Outer Banks Event Site - Parking Narrative
	David Ryan Email 4.15.16
	Shane Hite Email 4.15.16
	48-165 Ord Excerpt
	Complete Set 4-12-2016
	RPZ Pad Grading 4-13-2016
	North Lawn Overflow Parking Mock-up

	Cottage Court Discussion Memo



